
 

 
 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, May 8, 2014, 1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1:31 p.m. 2. Welcome and Introductions – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

 Past Chair Recognition 

 

1:34 p.m. 3. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of April 10, 2014 Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

1:35 p.m. 4. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

 State of Region Luncheon Recap - Laura Koprowski 

 insight2050 

 

1:45 p.m. 5. Proposed Resolution 10-14: “ACCEPTING THE VILLAGE OF JOHNSTOWN AS A 

MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” – 

William Murdock 

 

1:50 p.m. 6. Proposed Resolution 15-14: “AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO FILE 

APPLICATIONS WITH, EXECUTE AGREEMENTS WITH, AND RECEIVE FUNDS FROM 

THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION” - Nick Gill, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Interim 

Director  

 

 Specials Guests and Presentations 

 

1:55 p.m. 7. Featured Shared Services - Hilliard, City of Hilliard Mayor Don Schonhardt 

 

2:05 p.m. 8. Air Quality - Evelyn Ebert, MORPC Energy & Air Quality 

 

 Committees 

 

2:15 p.m. 9. Regional Policy Roundtable – Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher, Regional Policy 

Roundtable Chair 

a. Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Hill Brown & Ritter and Laura 

Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government Affairs Director 



Commission Meeting Agenda 

May 8, 2014 

Page 2 

 
 

 10. Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair  

2:25 p.m. a. Call to Order – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

 

2:26 p.m. b. Monthly Progress Report – Nick Gill, MORPC Transportation Systems & 

Funding Interim Director 

 Bike to Work 

 

2:30 p.m. c. Proposed Resolution T-6-14: "AMENDING THE BYLAWS OF THE CITIZEN 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE" – Nick Gill, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding 

Interim Director and Ira Weiss, Community Advisory Committee Vice Chair 

 

2:35 p.m. d. State of the Region Report/MTP Report Card - Nancy Reger, MORPC Data & 

Mapping Director 

 

2:40 p.m. e. Systematic Safety Improvement Update - Jordan Whisler, MORPC Planning & 

Environment 

 

2:45 p.m. 

 

 

f. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of April 10, 2014 Transportation Policy Committee Meeting 

Minutes 

 Proposed Resolution T-5-14: "AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL YEAR (SFY) 

2014-2017 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM" 

 Proposed Resolution T-7-14: "ACCEPTANCE OF THE MORPC FISCAL YEAR 

2015 PLANNING WORK PROGRAM" 

 Proposed Resolution T-8-14: "CERTIFICATION OF THE MORPC 

METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROCESS" 

 

2:48 p.m. g. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

 

2:50 p.m. 11. Motion to Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

 

2:52 p.m. 12. Other Business 

 

3:00 p.m. 13. Adjourn – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair 

 
 
 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org  
IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 
 

The next Commission Meeting is 
Thursday, June 12, 2014 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
 
Note: Due to construction, a portion of the eastbound lane of Liberty Street is closed 
between South Front and Short Streets; the westbound lane onto Short Street remains open. 
The closure is March 31, 2014 through the end of the year. MORPC's parking lot is 
accessible via Front Street, Liberty Street, or Short Street.  Please be sure to park in a 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


Commission Meeting Agenda 

May 8, 2014 

Page 3 

 
MORPC visitor space, in a space with an “M” on it, or in any yellow space. Handicapped 
parking is available at the back of MORPC’s building. 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Commission 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, April 10, 2014 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Commission Members 

Karen Angelou 

Stacey Boumis 

Susan Brobst 

Marilyn Brown 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

Karl Craven 

Tracie Davies 

Michael Ebert 

Terry Emery 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Marsha Grigsby 

Marian Harris 

Dan Havener 

Tom Homan 

Erik Janas 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Brook Kohn for Paula Brooks 

Greg Lestini 

Rory McGuiness 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Bryan Rhoads 

Dean Ringle 

Ike Stage 

Dennis Stapleton 

Ted Staton 

Steve Stolte 

Scott Tourville 

Ellen Walker 

Nancy White

 

Associate Members 

Jeff Cabot John O’Meara Nikki Scarpitti 

 

Policy Committee Members 

Mike Bradley 

Dennis Schooley 

Thom Slack 

Ira Weiss 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Mark Crosten 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Itzia Johnson 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Garth Weithman 

Kathy Werkmeister 

 

 

Guests 

Elliott Doza, COTA 

Cornell Robertson, FCEO 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

Bill Yaple 

 

 

Chair Marilyn Brown called the Commission Meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. 

 

Welcome and Introductions – Marilyn Brown, MORPC Chair 

Marilyn Brown presented Bill Yaple a certificate of appreciation for his service to MORPC. Mr. Yaple retired 

from Violet Township March 31, 2014. 

 

Election of Officers and Executive Committee - Matt Greeson, Nominating Committee Chair 

The Nominating Committee made the following recommendations for election: 

 The Officers are serving the first year of a two-year term expiring April 2016: 

 Eric Phillips, Chair 

 Matt Greeson, Vice-Chair 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 10, 2014 

Page 2 

 
 Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

 

 The nominees for Executive Committee members are: 

  New one-year term - Expires April 2015 

 Marilyn Brown, Franklin County, voting Ex-Officio - serving as Past Chair 

 Derrick Clay, Franklin County, voting Ex-Officio - serving as Chair of the Building 

Committee 

 Joe Stefanov, City of New Albany, voting Ex-Officio - serving as Chair of the Benefits 

Committee 

  Serving second year of a two-year term - Expires April 2015 

 Dennis Stapleton, Delaware County 

 Tracie Davies, City of Columbus 

 Eric Phillips, City of Marysville 

  Renew two-year term - Expires April 2016 

 Marsha Grigsby, City of Dublin 

 Matt Greeson, City of Worthington 

 Rory McGuiness, City of Columbus 

  New two-year term - Expires April 2016 

 Karen Angelou - City of Gahanna 

 Rob Platte - Etna Township 

 Michael Ebert - City of Canal Winchester 

 

Marilyn Brown opened the floor for nominations; no nominations were made. Marian Harris made a motion to 

accept the nominating committee recommendations, second by Steve Stolte; motion passed. 

 

Eric Phillips took over as Chair and thanked Marilyn Brown for her service as Chair the last two years. 

 

Consent Agenda 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Rob Platte; motion 

passed.   

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

William Murdock announced the insight2050 Steering Committee met last month. Yaromir Steiner chairs the 

diverse group. insight2050 is the topic of this year's State of the Region luncheon featuring Peter Calthorpe as 

the keynote speaker.  

 

Kathy Werkmeister reported that April is Fair Housing Month. Equal access to rental housing and 

homeownership opportunities is the cornerstone of the Fair Housing Act which prohibits discrimination and 

the intimidation of people in their homes, apartment buildings and condominiums in housing transactions, 

including rentals, sales, and mortgage loans. The Fair Housing Act was signed into law on April 11, 1968 by 

President Lyndon Johnson. There is a resolution on the agenda supporting equal and fair housing. 

 

The Columbus Foundation named MORPC one of "5 Nonprofits to Watch in 2014."  

 

Congratulations to Nathan Painter for being named to Columbus Business First's "Forty Under 40 Class of 

2014." Mr. Painter is a Hilliard representative on the Commission. 

 

Upcoming items: 

 The Regional Energy Report is expected to be released later this month. Christina O'Keeffe will give an 

update later in the meeting.  

 MORPC Data & Mapping Team Members are collaborating with the Ohio Department of 

Transportation (ODOT) and the City of Columbus on a regional sidewalk inventory for the MPO area.  



Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 10, 2014 

Page 3 

 
 

Eileen Leuby gave a membership update. In 2013 MORPC had 41 members; currently MORPC has 52 

members.   

 

Proposed Resolution 09-14: “ACCEPTING MADISON TOWNSHIP (FRANKLIN COUNTY) AS A MEMBER OF THE 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)" – William Murdock 

Rob Platte made a motion to approve Resolution 09-14, second by Marian Harris; motion passed. 

 

Proposed Resolution 13-14: “ACCEPTING THE SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY OF CENTRAL OHIO (SWACO) AS AN 

ASSOCIATE (NON-VOTING) MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)" – 

William Murdock 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve Resolution 13-14, second by Ellen Walker; motion passed. 

 

Proposed Resolution 12-14: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH 

THE CENTRAL OHIO COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION (COCIC) FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 

TRUSTED PARTNER PROGRAM FOR UP TO $60,000 AND TO ENTER INTO TWO TRUSTED PARTNER PROJECT 

AGREEMENTS FOR $30,000 EACH" – Kathy Werkmeister 

Derrick Clay made a motion to approve Resolution 12-14, second by Nancy White; motion passed. Marilyn 

Brown abstained. 

 

Proposed Resolution 14-14: “TO AFFIRM THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION'S SUPPORT OF 

FAIR HOUSING AND PROMOTING FAIR AND EQUAL HOUSING IN THE CENTRAL OHIO AREA" – Kathy 

Werkmeister 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve Resolution 14-14, second by Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher; motion 

passed.  

 

Special Guests and Presentations 

 

Featured Shared Services: Upper Arlington – Ted Staton, City of Upper Arlington City Manager 

Ted Staton presented information on an inventory of shared service partnerships begun by the City of Upper 

Arlington.  The inventory lists 58 partnerships with savings ranging from a few hundred dollars to a couple 

hundred thousand dollars. Partners include Upper Arlington Schools, Franklin County, the City of Columbus, 

the State of Ohio, and a number of non-profit and civic organizations. Mr. Staton shared specific examples to 

highlight the breadth of services being shared and the diversity of the organizations involved. The full 

inventory will be placed on the city's website after it has been seen by the city council. 

 

Regional Energy Action Plan – Christina O'Keeffe, MORPC Energy & Air Quality Director 

Christina O'Keeffe gave a presentation on the soon-to-be-released Regional Energy Action Plan. A regional 

energy use and development assessment was conducted resulting in a set of recommendations to create a 

more sustainable economy and environment. The final draft is being reviewed by the National Association of 

Regional Councils (NARC). The report will be released jointly by MORPC and NARC. An interactive map tool will 

be available on MORPC's website when the report is released. Ms. O'Keeffe thanked Nancy Reger who led the 

initial development of the report. 

 

Committees 

 

Regional Policy Roundtable –Marliee Chinnici-Zuercher, Roundtable Chair 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher reported the next Regional Policy Roundtable meeting is Thursday, April 24, 2014. 

Erika Young, Strategic Director of Transportation America, will speak on long term transportation funding 

challenges and opportunities. The roundtable is developing new guidelines for membership consistent with 

MORPC's committee membership guidelines. 

 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

April 10, 2014 

Page 4 

 
 Proposed Resolution 11-14: "SUPPORTING THE PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE OHIO CONSTITUTION 

(ISSUE 1) TO EXTEND THE STATE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM - Laura Koprowski 

 Ike Stage made a motion to approve Resolution 11-14, second by Marilyn Brown; motion passed. 

 

 Legislative Update –Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter and Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & 

Government Affairs Director 

Steve Tugend and Laura Koprowski gave the legislative update and highlighted the following issues: 

o HB 5 

Ike Stage made a motion to re-craft the letter sent previously to Ohio legislators and send it to the 

editor as a body, second by Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher; motion passed. The letter needs to go out in 

the next 24 to 48 hours. 

o Capital budget bill 

o SB 310 

o Federal transportation 

o HB 494 

o HB 289 

 

See the April 2014 Legislative Update for other legislative news 

 

Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips, MORPC Chair  

Chair Eric Phillips called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:35 p.m.  The session 

adjourned at 2:55 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 

 

Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve the actions of the Transportation Policy Committee, second by 

Derrick Clay; motion passed. 

 

Other Business 

A second round of grants from the Straight A fund is being awarded to school districts. Members are 

encouraged to make their school systems aware of the opportunity.  

 

The State of the Region luncheon is April 17, 2014 at the Downtown Hilton. The sold-out event featuring Peter 

Calthorpe includes the launch of insight2050, the Columbus Symphony Orchestra quartet, Columbus zoo 

animals, and a photo booth.  

 

The Commission Meeting adjourned at 2:58 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  



1 
 

 

MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

April 2014 

 
Public and Government Affairs  

Laura Koprowski – lkoprowski@morpc.org 

 

2014 State of the Region 

Thank you to MORPC’s local government and associate members for their support of this year’s 

State of the Region luncheon held on April 17. The annual signature event was successful in a 

number of areas. We reached a sold out number of 750 attendees three weeks before the event – a 

first-time achievement for us! This year the network portion of the program was sponsored by Brown 

& Caldwell and OhioHealth. The networking portion included the Columbus Symphony, animals from 

the Columbus Zoo & Aquarium, a photo booth and free car2go Columbus memberships. The annual 

awards were presented to the following people: Regional Leadership Award - Marjory Pizzuti, CEO 

Goodwill Columbus; William C. Habig Collaborative Achievement Award – Economic Development 

411; and William H. Anderson Excellence in Public Service Award – Eric Phillips, Executive Director 

and CEO Union Co-Marysville Economic Development Partnership. 
 

During the luncheon, MORPC unveiled a new initiative, insight2050, to help us better understand 

future growth and its impacts on our communities. This year’s keynote speaker, Peter Calthorpe of 

Calthorpe Associates, discussed the importance of considering demographic shifts and market 

demands in land use planning. MORPC has also hired Calthorpe’s firm to provide the technical work 

and analysis for insight2050. Through an email survey, this year’s event had very positive feedback 

from attendees: 87% rated the location “Excellent”; 83% rated the food “Good or Excellent”; and 

72% rated the overall program “Excellent”. 

 

Membership Report 

Member visits were completed with Granville Township, Village of Minerva Park, and the Cities of 

New Albany, Gahanna, and Upper Arlington.  

 

MORPC is pleased to welcome our 54th member to the Commission - the Village of Johnstown. A 

prospective member visit meeting was held with Jerome Township and there is potential for a future 

presentation before the township’s trustees.  

 

Membership Services Coordinator Eileen Leuby presented to the Gahanna Rotary about MORPC’s 

services to the region. Additional projects with our external partners this month included 

participating in the first planning meeting for the joint ED411 event scheduled for December 5, 2014 

and serving on the Columbus-Franklin County Finance Authority’s Marketing Steering Committee.   

 

MORPC In the News 

The following news coverage featuring MORPC and MORPC team members appeared in the local 

media: 

 Columbus Dispatch – Editorial responding to HB5 – municipal income tax uniformity 

 Columbus Dispatch – Coverage of insight2050 project and State of the Region event  



2 
 

 FM 93.3 WODC – Covering launch of insight2050 initiative 

 Johnstown Independent – Village of Johnstown seeking MORPC membership 

 Lancaster Eagle Gazette - Lithopolis hopes to receive a grant for a 96-acre nature preserve 

from the Clean Ohio Fund’s conservation program, which is under review by the Natural 

Resources Council and MORPC provides staffing services to this council 

 Marysville Journal-Tribune – Interviewed William Murdock about the Chicago to Columbus 

high speed passenger rail with a station stop in Marysville  

 The Lima News – MORPC included in article about team member Brian Williams meeting with 

Allen County officials hoping to produce locally growing markets  

 The Hannah Report – Announced MORPC’s  new officers 

 WOSU - All Sides with Ann Fisher – Nancy Reger discussed Ohio's Changing Demographics 

and Economic Impacts 

 WOSU – All Sides with Ann Fisher – Nick Gill discussed bridges, freeways, highways and local 

roads in Central Ohio, planned projects for our area in 2014 and Issue 1 infrastructure 

projects 

 Columbus2020 E-Newsletter included MORPC’s State of the Region luncheon, 

congratulations to the award winners, and the kick off of insight2050 

 Friends of the Big Walnut Tributaries E-Newsletter included an article on Central Ohio Water 

Trials by David Rutter 

 Columbus Dispatch - “Project will link Alum Creek Trail next year” interview by Kerstin Carr 

 

Marketing 

Team members developed a marketing campaign for MORPC’s homeownership education program 

which includes production and airing of television commercials on the CW Columbus station and 

website from April 14, 2014 through April 25, 2014; producing videos on homeownership; and a 

new brochure in both English and Spanish. 

 

MORPC selected local public relations firm, Fahlgren Mortine, to provide strategic communications, 

media and community relations services for the insight2050 initiative.  

 

Online Communications Efforts 

MORPC ran a paid Facebook advertisement to promote available seats for vanpools from 

Delaware/Lewis Center to Ohio State for RideSolutions’ OSU Vanpool Program. The post ran from 

April 14, 2014 through April 21, 2014. The cost was $40, reached 10,608 people, and had 93 

interactions (clicks, likes, comments and shares). RideSolutions’ received three phone calls in 

response to the ad that may lead to filled seats for the vans.  

 

MORPC is hosting a half-day social media workshop for local governments Wednesday, June 18, 

2014. More details will be available soon.  

 

Government Affairs 

MORPC hosted Erika Young from Transportation for America (T4America) for a 2-day visit to present 

and attend key community meetings to raise awareness about the looming fiscal crisis of the 

nation’s transportation trust fund. Erika provided an advanced look at T4America’s report on this 

critical issue that was released on April 30, 2014 and available online: http://t4america.org/.  

 

MORPC is involved in organizing the Ohio Association of Regional Councils’ 2014 Gubernatorial 

Event scheduled for Friday, August 22, 2014 at the Easton Hilton Hotel Ballroom. This will be the 

third time that MORPC and OARC have hosted this event that brings together approximately one 

dozen transportation and economic development oriented organizations and 500 attendees to hear 

http://t4america.org/


3 
 

the gubernatorial candidates discuss their ideas and insights on transportation, job creation, and 

economic development.  

 

Transportation  

Nick Gill - ngill@morpc.org 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 

Team members completed the annual MTP report card. The report card depicts regional progress 

toward achieving the objectives identified by the plan. It is accessible on the website at: 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/metropolitan-transportation-plan/index 

 

Highways and Planning 

An email was sent to local jurisdictions to provide notification of the opportunity to review and 

comment on the results of the initial proposed changes to the Functional Classification of the 

Federal-aid Highway System. The information on the MORPC website was also updated with the 

ability to provide comments from there. The changes are due to ODOT in May. 

 

Technical support was provided to the City of Dublin and its consultant team in the preparation of a 

TIGER VI grant application for the I-270/US 33 interchange improvement project. The application is 

due April 28, 2014. 

 

Transit/Human Services 

The Cleveland Avenue BRT technical working group met April 17, 2014. COTA and HDR presented 

sample plans of the corridor, transit centers and stations for the group’s review and feedback. On 

May 9, 2014 the 30% plan review will be provided to respective agencies for review and approval. 

 

RideSolutions 

The RideSolutions (RS) team is preparing for the 3rd Greener Workplace Roundtable luncheon. The 

May 15, 2014 roundtable will be held at the Central Ohio Transit Authority (COTA) Administrative 

Offices. RS and our Transportation Demand Management (TDM) partners will meet with 15 pre-

selected downtown employers and organizations. The agenda includes networking, service and 

program presentations, and peer-to-peer discussions. Panera Bread is the lunch sponsor. 

 

RideSolutions increased its outreach efforts in and around Pickaway County. This month 

RideSolutions held events and meetings with new partners in the area. They are partnering with 

Pickaway County Job & Family Services helping their residents find and retain employment 

opportunities.  The RS team hosted educational and awareness events at the Ohio Christian 

University; RideSolutions shared information with their students, faculty and staff members. 

 

RideSolutions team members and the Green Team of the Columbus Metropolitan Library are in the 

first phase of launching the first "Rideshare Club" initiative. RideSolutions is working with all the 

branch managers in developing and implementing sustainable transportation options based on the 

needs, schedules, and their staff's preferences. 

 

Infrastructure Funding 

TIP 

The MORPC attributable funding process was approved in April. The online application process opens 

on May 5, 2014. A workshop on the process is scheduled for May 13, 2014 at 2:30 p.m. at MORPC. 

Additional information can be found at http://www.morpc.org/transportation/funding-grants/morpc-

attributable-funding/index. 
 

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/metropolitan-transportation-plan/index
http://www.morpc.org/transportation/funding-grants/morpc-attributable-funding/index
http://www.morpc.org/transportation/funding-grants/morpc-attributable-funding/index


4 
 

OPWC 

The Natural Resources Assistance Council conducted a public meeting and recommended the award 

of six projects. These six projects will receive $3.2 million in grants from the Clean Ohio Conservation 

Fund program to purchase 322 acres of green space in Franklin County. 

 

MORPC Regional Data and Mapping Department 

Nancy Reger - nreger@morpc.org 

 

Collaboration and Joint Projects 

The regional sidewalk inventory being conducted by ODOT, with support from the City of Columbus 

and MORPC is underway. A pilot area was digitized for review. MORPC is coordinating quality control 

on the project with input from local communities. Columbus is the first area to be digitized in order to 

provide data necessary for the district-wide school safety plan. 

 

A new version of GIS software used to support the Location Based Response System (LBRS) 

project was released. MORPC, the City of Columbus, and other communities participating in the 

program are moving forward testing the project using the new software.  

 

Information received from local communities by way of on-line maps regarding their “existing land 

use” was incorporated into the base map. A similar map showing “future land use as planned” is 

scheduled for release in early-May. This information will used in conjunction with insight2050 results 

to develop the future land to be used in the 2016-2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan. 

 

Data & Mapping Involvement in Projects and Programs 

The Data and Mapping team appeared on WOSU radio to discuss population growth in Central Ohio.   

The 2014 State of the Region report is published on the MORPC website and can be accessed at 

www.morpc.org/sotrreport.  The report is a 12-page overview of the growth, economy, development, 

environmental, energy and transportation advancements, challenges the 12-county area addressed 

in 2013, and a look forward to upcoming activities. 

 

Data sets regarding land use trend data, county control totals for population and employment, and 

various supporting land coverage GIS files were delivered to the consultants working on insight2050. 

 

Population, housing, and employment forecasts in 5-year increments between the years 2010 and 

2035 were developed and are being prepared for posting on MORPC’s website. 

 

The interactive map that accompanies the Regional Energy Action Plan was released on the MORPC 

website on the “Map Room” page under Data/Maps & Tools at 

http://arcgiswebadp1.morpc.org/webmaps/energyplan/wrapper.html.  
 

Support for Members and the Community at Large 

Supporting demographic information was supplied to Dublin for use in its TIGER VI transportation 

funding application. Data included an analysis of the income levels of travelers who depend upon the 

interchange for commuting to work. 

 

Future land use data sets were reviewed and modified in the US 36/SR 37 interchange area to 

assist ODOT in traffic studies it is conducting in the area. 

 

Maps and data were provided to the Columbus Metropolitan Library that include the income 

information and location of children between ages 0-4.  

 

 

http://www.morpc.org/sotrreport
http://arcgiswebadp1.morpc.org/webmaps/energyplan/wrapper.html


5 
 

MORPC Planning and Environment Department 

Kerstin Carr - kcarr@morpc.org 

 

Active Transportation Planning 

MORPC team members facilitated the first meeting of the Active Transportation Plan Working Group 

to help develop the scope of the Active Transportation Plan (ATP). The team members are using the 

Working Group's feedback to draft the scope and a timeline. The ATP will likely consider the 

interaction and integration of pedestrian, bicycle, and transit networks and their users with a focus 

on 10 to 15 regionally significant corridors. Special attention will be placed on areas within the 

networks that cross or touch jurisdictional boundaries. A cost/benefit analysis and an interactive 

web map to assist jurisdictions in their planning for and implementation of active transportation 

facilities will be included. Team members began collecting data on existing and planned active 

transportation facilities and related plans from jurisdictions in the planning area.  

 

Safety Planning 

MORPC team members attended the Safe Routes to School project selection meeting at ODOT to 

help identify which project applications should receive full or partial funding. This selection 

committee consists of the various ODOT district's safe routes to school coordinators and 

representatives of different disciplines. Both infrastructure and non-infrastructure projects were 

discussed.  

 

Team members attended a focused training course on the Highway Safety Manual to better 

understand predictive crash analysis. This type of training will be useful in scoping MORPC's Safety 

Plan. 

 

Green Pact 

The Green Pact communities met for their regularly scheduled meeting. They are in support of the 

idea of the new "Sustainability Advisory Committee" using the Green Pact goals as their driving goals. 

Participants at the meeting want Green Pact meetings to focus on information sharing.  

 

Greenways Program 

A Greenways & Water Quality working group meeting was held April 4, 2014. At that meeting the 

announcement was made that the working group will be splitting into two groups, one with a focus 

on trails and the other on water quality and land use. At this meeting, both the trails and water 

groups identified goals that will guide their work through 2015. The water quality and land use group 

will be moving to a quarterly meeting schedule like the Greenways & Trail Forums. The groups will 

come together once a year for a joint meeting to share what was accomplished during the year.  

 

The Steering Committee for the Economic Impact of Trails Study met to discuss the trail monitoring 

component of the project. Several of the project partners will set up automated counters on more 

than 70 segments of trail for 7-day periods between May and October. Committee members 

discussed the distribution of count responsibilities, procedures, and other next steps. The next 

quarterly meeting is scheduled for Monday, July 28, 2014. 

 

Regional Education Forums 

A Regional Education Forum is scheduled for Wednesday, April 30, 2014 with a focus on best 

practices in air quality. The title of the forum is “Be Air Aware and Act to Protect Your Health”. Nearly 

30 people have signed up for the forum. 

 
 



6 
 

Regional Collaboration 

MORPC worked with its members to modify existing and identify new regional collaboration groups in 

an effort to make the meetings more useful and applicable to all attendees. The Southeast Area 

Group met on April 10, 2014 and followed the new meeting approach. Violet Township presented on 

the Pickerington School's Safe Routes to School efforts and discussed installing sidewalks on roads 

that do not have curbs and gutters.  

 
Info Share Meetings 

Team members met with Capital University and PlanningNEXT to discuss their planning, 

development, and infrastructure projects and endeavors. Capital University is working on a campus 

master plan and is updating their strategic plan. They want to be involved in one of the Regional 

Collaboration groups.  

 

PlanningNext developed a "Viability and Competitiveness Study" for Dublin to help them evaluate two 

of their business parks. They are helping Westerville with their comprehensive planning process. 

They also recently assisted the Short North Alliance with developing a strategic plan. 

  

insight2050 

As mentioned earlier, insight2050 was formally introduced at the State of the Region event where 

Peter Calthorpe, the project's lead consultant, was the keynote speaker. Along with its public launch, 

staff published the website for insight2050. More information for the project can now be found at 

www.morpc.org/insight2050.   

 

Sustaining Scioto 

The Steering Committee met April 24, 2014. The committee helped further refine the format of data 

presentation. U.S. Geological Survey (USGS) staff will meet with Columbus Department of Utilities 

and Del Co technical staff to identify critical water levels in both reservoirs and streams that guide 

the development of the adaptive management plan. USGS expects to have a draft of their study 

report complete by the end of May with a final peer reviewed draft to be published in the fall. Brown 

and Caldwell (B&C) is looking to use historical extremes to frame the data to aid in understanding by 

the general public. The next meeting of the steering committee will be June 17, 2014 at USGS. 

 

The Stakeholder Advisory Committee will meet May 29, 2014 to discuss the water inventory/water 

balance being prepared by Brown and Caldwell. B&C reported that they received questions back 

regarding the water research foundation grant. All indications are that the grant will be funded; a 

confirmation should be given about the funding in mid-May.  

 

Energy and Air Quality 

Christina O'Keeffe - cokeeffe@morpc.org  

 

The department continues with its process improvement activities through Six Sigma and Lean 

principles of the Residential Energy Efficiency program. The project team has worked through a sub-

project that involved the initial inspection of the client’s home through delivery of work orders to 

contractors. Several improvements are being made to the processes for increased efficiencies and 

consistencies, such as: 

 Standardization of file structure and cover tracking form for ease of use 

 Utilization of file out guides and color coded in file system 

 Electronic tracking system for files 

file://morpc2/two/Executive%20Management/2.%20COMMISSION/2014%20Commission/04%20-%20April/www.morpc.org/insight2050


7 
 

 Streamline data collection forms to ensure energy inspectors target required and cost-

effective energy efficiency measures in client’s home 

 

The project team initiated the second sub-project to include receipt of work orders by contractors to 

work completed in client’s home. More than a dozen contractors will be included in the process 

improvement activities, first with a survey followed by targeted in-person activities. The focus is to 

reduce the cycle time to within 45 days for work completion in order to meet expectations by both 

clients and funders.   

 

New case managers/energy auditors are undergoing orientation of program requirements and will be 

participating in a series of trainings to obtain certifications. Once certified to program requirements, 

they will be added to capacity for conducting energy inspections. The administrative and marketing 

coordinator is also working on new strategies to promote program resources, including partnership 

with the Neighborhood Pride events with City of Columbus. Mr. Tony Sykes, Quality Assurance/Intake 

Supervisor, has announced his retirement on August 29, 2014 after 30 years of public service. 

Finally, hiring continues to fill the vacant position – case manager/energy auditor.  

 

Air Quality  

April 1, 2014 marked the beginning of ozone season, when MORPC’s air quality forecasters monitor 

for ozone pollution. Air Quality team members worked on MORPC’s April 30, 2014 educational forum 

about air quality and coordinated a press release about the forum and ozone season.  The team 

finalized the work plan and developed a plan to work with media, drafted a new brochure, website 

updates, and will launch a new initiative called Take Five for Clean Air. Local governments, 

businesses, and organizations will be recognized on the website for pledging five actions online to 

improve air quality.    

 

Energy & Air Quality Working Group 

Working group members and chair, Dale Arnold, continued to study legislation prior to the Policy 

Roundtable – specifically HB 319 and SB 310. Comments were shared by the MORPC team during 

the Policy Roundtable discussion April 24, 2014. The next Energy & Air Quality working group 

meeting is scheduled for May 27, 2014. The agenda will feature Ted Ford, Director of Advanced 

Energy Economy along with updates on the air quality forecasting and alert for ozone season.  

 

Regional Energy Action Plan   

The plan was presented to the Commission on April 10, 2014. It will be released pending finalization 

by the National Association of Regional Councils (NARC).  

 

Residential Energy Efficiency Program  

Through the first quarter of 2014, MORPC is on track with internal goals and metrics as agreed to 

with funders. Limited capacity due to vacant case managers/energy inspectors is a challenge but 

continues to be managed. Nearly 250 income-eligible households were served through the Columbia 

Gas of Ohio's WarmChoice Program, the State of Ohio's Home Weatherization Assistance Program 

(HWAP) and Electric Partnership Program (EPP), and American Electric Power (AEP)'s Community 

Assistance Program.  

 

Production: The team has completed 50% of planned households with services funded through 

HWAP and is on track to fulfill program requirements by June 30, 2014. In addition, nearly 90% 

of planned households served to date through WarmChoice is complete. Production was affected 

due to required training and recertification by inspectors/auditors.  

Customer Service/Intake: Team members continue to manage the call volume of interested 

clients that escalated due to the colder winter temperatures, processing applications, and 



8 
 

scheduling inspections. Further, a targeted mailing was sent to more than 200 eligible 

customers that are high energy users of natural gas (more than 1400 ccf) in hopes to bring 

resources to these potential customers.  

Materials Management Working Group  

The MORPC team and the outgoing working group chair met with the new chair to provide 

orientation. One of the group’s goals is to plan agenda items that are relevant to MORPC member 

communities to encourage attendance. Feedback is welcome in this process. The next meeting is 

scheduled for May 28, 2014.   

 

(Former) Center Advisory Council   

MORPC team members drafted language to establish a Sustainability Advisory Committee for the 

Commission, based on Advisory Council recommendations. The By-laws Committee met in April and 

discussed recommendations which were incorporated into the language. The final Center Advisory 

Council meeting will take place May 9, 2014 at noon, which will include member recognition and a 

lunch.   
 

Housing and Community Services (HCS) – March 2014 

Kathy Werkmeister – kwerkmeister@morpc.org 
 

Counseling 

Counseling team members continue to be extremely busy with new foreclosure clients.  The Save the 

Dream Program is beginning to wind down; all Save the Dream applications must be registered by 

April 30, 2014 to be considered for assistance through this program. 

MORPC submitted an application for housing counseling funds through the U.S. Department of 

Housing and Urban Development.    

MORPC was awarded $84,900 for Phase Eight of the National Foreclosure Mitigation Counseling 

program. 

Homebuyer Education classes continue in the month of May.  The series of three sessions will be 

offered on May 7, 14, and 21, 2014. 

MORPC is running a 15-second advertisement on the Columbus CW television station promoting our 

homebuyer education classes. 

Community Housing Improvement Program (CHIP) 

MORPC team members are processing the final applications and managing ongoing rehab and repair 

projects for the 2012-2014 Pataskala CHIP program.  MORPC is preparing the 2014-2016 CHIP 

applications for the City of Marysville and the City of Pataskala.  Both applications will be submitted 

to the State by June 6, 2014.   

 

Housing Repair and Rehabilitation  

Rehab team members continue to take applications and manage rehabilitation work in Franklin 

County, the Weinland Park area of the City of Columbus, and the City of Pataskala. Additionally, 

rehab team members are ramping up to begin work in the City of Columbus’ Franklinton area. 

 

The Rehab team is working to complete the construction of 20 housing units of the Franklin County 

Single Family Rehabilitation program; 18 of the 20 units are complete or near completion.  Team 

members began the intake and applications for the next round of the Franklin County Single Family 

Rehabilitation program consisting of up to eight units. 



9 
 

Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP)  

Construction agreements are completed to begin the construction phase on the final NSP home 

purchased through the Franklin County NSP-1 program in Prairie Township.   

 

Housing and Community Services Working Group (H&CS WG)  

The H&CS WG continues to meet and plans to make recommendations regarding opportunities for 

the Housing and Community Services department by the end of June.  

  

Training and Staff  

Two team members attended training about the changes to the CHIP program and grant application 

process.  Four staff members attended the Ohio Conference of Community Development, Inc. (OCCD) 

Spring Quarterly Meeting and training.   
 

MORPC Administration 

Shawn Hufstedler – shufstedler@morpc.org 

Deborah Murphy – dmurphy@morpc.org 

 
MORPC’s 2013 financial statement audit began in March and continues through May. The Kennedy 

Cottrell Richards auditors were onsite for two weeks primarily focusing on internal control and 

compliance testing in March. They returned the last two weeks in April to finish their audit fieldwork 

including the audit of our Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  

 

Finance team members are in the process of preparing a request for proposals (RFPs) for a new 

accounting system with assistance and input from our current system maintenance provider and the 

MORPC team throughout the agency. The RFP is expected to be released in May. We anticipate a 

new system implementation for 2015.  

 

Open Positions  

MORPC is recruiting for Director of Transportation Systems & Funding due to a retirement vacancy. 

Interviews began April 23, 2014. 

 

Additionally, MORPC is recruiting for one intern for Transportation Systems & Funding. MORPC is 

currently recruiting for one Case Manager for the Energy & Air Quality Department.  

 

Administrative Services 

The paperwork for space changes and renovations in the building are finalized. These changes will 

move team members into the new department structures so employee teams are co-located. 

 

Staff participated in a fire drill April 8, 2014. This was a good refresher for all team members to 

identify where to congregate in the event of a fire.  

 

Information Technology 

A new Voice Over Internet Protocol (VOIP) phone system is now in place for agency use. This change 

saves the agency $1,000 each month in rental costs. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

William Murdock 

Executive Director 

 

DATE: 

 

May 2, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 10-14: “ACCEPTING THE VILLAGE OF 

JOHNSTOWN AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

 

 

The Village of Johnstown Council met April 15, 2014 and voted to authorize the Village to 

become a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC). The attached 

resolution accepts the Village of Johnstown as a member of MORPC, which will help meet 

the desire of MORPC’s membership to continue to grow the organization for the benefit of a 

stronger Central Ohio region. 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 10-14 

 

 



RESOLUTION 10-14 

 

“ACCEPTING THE VILLAGE OF JOHNSTOWN AS A MEMBER OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING 

COMMISSION (MORPC)” 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Johnstown recognizes the need for collaborative, cooperative planning in 

order to ensure continued growth and prosperity; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s mission is to be the regional voice and a catalyst for sustainability and econom-

ic prosperity in order to secure a competitive advantage for Central Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Johnstown has petitioned for membership in MORPC; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of MORPC’s members to continue to grow for the benefit of strong collabo-

ration on regional issues; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Johnstown will be assessed $1,025 pro-rated dues based on 2014 popula-

tion; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Village of Johnstown Council voted to join MORPC and passed a resolution to accept 

the conditions of membership contained in MORPC’s Articles of Agreement; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the Village of Johnstown is accepted as a member of the Mid-Ohio Regional 

Planning Commission. 

 

Section 2. That the Bylaws provide that one (1) representative for the Village of Johnstown is 

eligible to serve as a voting member at the MORPC Commission meetings. 

 

Section 3. That the Village of Johnstown shall be entitled to the same regular services of MORPC 

as other members and that any special services will be purchased by the township 

based on standard MORPC rates.   

 

Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 5.  That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 
 

 

                                                                                

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

      MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: May 8, 2014 

Submitted by: William Murdock, Executive Director 

Prepared by:  Eileen Leuby, Member Services Coordinator, Public & Government Affairs 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: May 8, 2014 



Memo 

Proposed Resolution 15-14 

Page 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Nick Gill, Interim Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

May 2, 2014 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 15-14: "AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO FILE APPLICATIONS WITH, EXECUTE AGREEMENTS 

WITH, AND RECEIVE FUNDS FROM THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION AND THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION" 

 
Annually, MORPC submits an application to the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) for 

planning funds to continue the metropolitan planning program, as currently defined by MAP-21.  

Some of these funds are allocated to MORPC on a “formula” basis and others are allocated at the 

discretion of MORPC and other agencies.  The appropriate portions of the grants and the local shares 

are included in the agency budget for 2014.  

 

For State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2015 (begins July 1, 2014) MORPC is requesting $2,125,657 of new 

combined Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) planning 

funds, and $265,707 of new ODOT matching funds.  The MORPC local share for these grants is 

$265,707.  These are the “formula” funds supporting the base transportation planning.  An 

additional approximately $200,000 (including the 10 percent match by ODOT and MORPC) is being 

carried over from SFY 2014. 

 

Historically, MORPC has encouraged ridesharing and vanpools.  In SFY 2015, MORPC will be using 

$715,000 of MORPC Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) funds for the “RideSolutions” 

ridesharing program. 

 

Other discretionary special projects include $250,000 in MORPC STP funds and $62,500 in 

matching funds for Supplemental Planning that will include five activities: 

 

1. Project Expedition SFY 2015 – Augment the efforts of the TIP project to ensure the timely 

completion of projects funded with MORPC-attributable funds. 

 

2. Traffic Monitoring – Augment traffic counts received from local governments by taking 

traffic counts at other key locations to maintain the regional model and for other 



Memo 

Proposed Resolution 15-14 

Page 2 

 
purposes.  Also, enhance availability of data on the MORPC website and continue a speed 

data collection program. 

 

3. Data Products and Services – This includes soliciting services and data products that 

supplement Work Elements 60515-201, 60515-202, 60515-203, 60515-204 

(transportation data-related elements).  It includes technical tools and services for 

promoting data sharing and availability.  It includes support for such activities as the 

Location-Based Response System, which is used by local safety services for more 

accurate dispatching and other local and state agencies for inventorying assets and 

operations.   

 

4. Assistance to Members – Provides planning data, travel demand forecasting, and 

transportation analysis assistance to members upon request for studies conducted by or 

for local governments.   

 

5. Update of the Intelligent Transportation System Architecture to allow projects such as the 

Freeway Management System and the Columbus and Suburban Signal Systems to be 

eligible for federal funding.   

 

As Central Ohio is designated a “non-attainment” area for ozone and for fine particulate matter, 

MORPC will continue its planning and education efforts for air quality using additional CMAQ funds 

that begin in SFY 2015.  Beginning in FY 2014 the Air Quality program was funded for approximately 

18 months at $368,750.  An additional $100,000 of CMAQ funding and $25,000 of matching funds 

will be used for Work Element 66732-000 to extend the program through the end of FY 2015. 

 

A new special project is Work Element 67415-000.  This is to administer the FTA Section 5310 

funding for the Columbus urbanized area.  MORPC as the designated recipient will receive $97,319 

for staff administration from FTA during FY 2015.  No matching funds are required. 

 

In total, including other special projects and the RideSolutions and air quality programs that began in 

previous PWPs and were addressed in previous resolutions, transportation-funded elements of 

MORPC have remaining funds totaling approximately $2,534,419 out of an original budget of 

$3,832,690.  Another $200,000 in carryover from core projects totals $1,734,419 in remaining 

funding beginning in SFY 2015 or carried over from previous years. 

 

The use of these funds is outlined in the SFY 2015 PWP that reflects comments from ODOT and 

FHWA.  Attached to Resolution 15-14 is a summary of the draft SFY 2015 PWP expected to be 

approved by the Transportation Policy Committee under Resolution T-7-14.   

 

ODOT requires that the full remaining budget for each project, including amounts planned to be 

carried forward, be included in the PWP.  This amount totals $5,391,490, but a portion may be 

carried over into SFY 2016. 

 

Resolution 15-14 authorizes the executive director to submit and execute any required grant 

applications and related agreements including the biennial agreement with ODOT.  The resolution 

also ensures MORPC's compliance with the civil rights statutes required for receipt of federal funds. 

 

NTG:WY:bsn 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 15-14 



RESOLUTION 15-14 

 

“AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO FILE APPLICATIONS WITH, EXECUTE 

AGREEMENTS WITH, AND RECEIVE FUNDS FROM THE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION AND THE OHIO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION” 

 

WHEREAS, the secretary of the U.S. Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT) is authorized to 

make grants for transportation planning funds consistent with Moving Ahead for Progress in 

the 21st Century (MAP-21); and 

 

WHEREAS, these funds are administered in Ohio by the Ohio Department of Transportation 

(ODOT); and 

 

WHEREAS, the contracts for financial assistance will impose certain obligations upon the 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC), including the provision of the local share 

of project costs; and 

 

WHEREAS, the transportation planning process is also required to be in compliance with the 

Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 (CAAA); and 

 

WHEREAS, it is required by the U.S. DOT, that in connection with filing applications for 

assistance, MORPC gives an assurance that it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 

of 1964 and the U.S. DOT requirements thereunder; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC has established procedures for the disadvantaged business enterprise 

(DBE) program, and it is the goal of MORPC, within the requirements of U.S. DOT and ODOT, 

that DBEs be utilized to the maximum extent feasible when procuring equipment, supplies, 

and services; and 

 

WHEREAS, to do some of the projects in the State Fiscal Year 2015 Planning Work Program 

(PWP) it will be necessary to secure matching funds from other agencies and to subcontract 

work or make purchases per the estimated amounts shown in the attachment; now 

therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to file applications with and execute 

grant agreements on behalf of MORPC with U.S. DOT and ODOT, to aid in 

financing technical studies and other transportation-related activities. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to enter into a continuing agreement 

with ODOT to implement 23 U.S.C. §134 and 49 U.S.C. §1607, as may be 

amended, in the Columbus metropolitan planning area, including designation 

of MORPC as the metropolitan planning organization responsible for 

conducting the continuing, cooperative and comprehensive urban 

transportation planning process. 

 

Section 3. That the executive director is authorized to enter into ongoing agreements of 

cooperation with the counties, incorporated municipalities, and other entities 

and special districts within the area for carrying forward the metropolitan 

transportation planning process consistent with MAP-21 and CAAA. 



Resolution 15-14 

Page 2 

 
Section 4. That the executive director is authorized to execute and file with such 

application an assurance or any other document required by the U.S. DOT, 

effectuating the purposes of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, including 

amendments. 

 

Section 5. That the executive director is authorized to furnish such additional 

information as U.S. DOT or ODOT may require in connection with the 

application for the PWP. 

 

Section 6. That the executive director is authorized to set forth and execute affirmative 

disadvantaged business policies in connection with the project's procurement 

needs. 

 

Section 7. That the following estimated funding be requested from ODOT: 

 

a. $2,125,657 of new combined FHWA PL and FTA Section 5303 

funding ($265,707 of new MORPC and ODOT matching funds each). 

 

 b. $715,000 of MORPC CMAQ funds to support RideSolutions. 

 

c. $250,000 in MORPC STP funds for five activities ($62,500 of MORPC 

matching funds). 

 

d. $100,000 in MORPC CMAQ funds for air quality awareness program 

($25,000 of MORPC matching funds). 

 

Section 8. That previously approved projects and activities, with remaining budgets 

totaling approximately $1,154,600 in various federal, ODOT, and local funds, 

be authorized to continue.   

 

Section 9. That the executive director is hereby authorized to enter into any agreements 

with these or other funding agencies and with any subcontractors or vendors 

necessary to undertake any of the activities identified in the State Fiscal Year 

2015 PWP for amounts that have been included in the approved budget of 

the agency.   

 

Section 10. That the executive director is authorized, if required, to approve one or more 

extensions of time for performance of services for any of the agreements 

described in this resolution and to receive funds or issue change orders not 

to exceed 25 percent of the original total of the agreement amounts without 

further authorization from this Commission. 

 

Section 11. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and 

execute and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal 

counsel, he shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of 

this resolution. 

 

Section 12. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and 

actions of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this 

resolution were taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

  



Resolution 15-14 

Page 3 

 
 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair    

 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: May 8, 2014 

Submitted by: Nick Gill, Interim Director of Transportation Systems and Funding 

Prepared by: Transportation Systems and Funding Department 

Authority: Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For Action Date: May 8, 2014 

 

 

Attachment A:    List of Activities to be Subcontracted 

 

Attachment B: Summary State Fiscal Year 2015 Draft Planning Work Program 

 



Resolution 15-14 

Attachment A 

 

 

List of activities to be subcontracted: 

 

1. RideSolutions marketing/advertising/vanpool subsidies/ride-matching software – approximately 

$90,000 is budgeted for miscellaneous printing, marketing and advertising to multiple vendors, 

$88,000 for vanpool subsidies to various vanpool providers, and $48,000 to Trapeze for ride- 

matching software (some of this is paid by other MPOs in a shared services arrangement). 

 

2. Air Quality Awareness marketing/advertising – during SFY 2015, approximately $20,000 is 

budgeted for miscellaneous air quality-related printing, marketing and advertising to multiple 

vendors.  An additional $70,000 is budgeted for ozone and particulate forecasting services. 

 

3. Up to $80,000 subcontracted for traffic counting services. 

 

4. Up to $30,000 for consulting services to update the Intelligent Transportation System 

Architecture. 

 

5. Continuation of up to $100,000 for consulting services for conducting the economic impact of 

trails study. 

 

6. Continuation of up to $322,700 for consulting services for the regional growth impact analysis 

(InSight 2050) study. 

 

All other funds received and contracts to be let were or will be addressed by other resolutions, if 

required. 

 

 



 SUMMARY

Attachment to Resolution T-7-14 and 

Attachment B to Resolution 15-14

Notes on Listing

$7,208,231

$5,391,490

FISCAL YEAR 2015 PLANNING WORK PROGRAM

Total budget of all work elements (including funds spent prior to SFY 2015) 

is estimated to remain to be expended in SFY 2015 or subsequent years.

I.  Formula Funded Planning Program Projects

WORK ELEMENT

BUDGET

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

$3,375,541

$518,470

Total Budget

spent prior to SFY 2015 $2,857,071Balance for SFY 2015 or later is

60114-003 Safety Planning

Safety continues to be a significant focus for FHWA, ODOT and the entire region. 
This activity works to gather safety-related data, manage crash data clean-up, report 
on safety meetings, track development of projects to address safety issues, 
coordinate with the safety management system, and prepare the safety aspects of the 
Transportation Plan. In addition, this work element includes collaboration with MORPC 
members to identify and address (potential) high-crash locations and behaviors.

$178,639

* $60,000 remaining

60115-101 Active Transportation Planning

Active transportation planning is an important element to transportation planning in 
general. This activity works to create a regional active transportation plan, gather 
pedestrian and bicycle-related data, review transportation plans and projects to ensure 
that all users are accommodated, work on specific projects, such as the Economic 
Impact of Trails study, and provide information and education to local government 
members to assist them in their local planning efforts.

$400,000

60115-103 Safety Planning

Safety continues to be a significant focus for FHWA, ODOT and the entire region. 
This activity works to gather crash data, conduct crash data analysis to provide 
regional high-crash location lists, report on safety meetings, encourage local 
governments to apply for funding to implement safety countermeasures, conduct 
preand post-crash data analysis for safety projects to evaluate the benefits of each 
countermeasure, implement the regional systematic safety improvement pilot, and 
develop a regional safety plan.

$135,000

60115-302 Management & Operations Planning

Managing and maintaining the extensive existing transportation system is an essential
activity. This activity includes education on the benefits of a holistically managed 
transportation system. Helping members collaborate on M&O, advancing ITS and 
access management, estimating costs to maintain the condition of the transportation 
system including pavement management and deficient bridges, etc. Incorporating 
security and emergency response into the planning process. Monitoring freight rail 
activities and analyzing for developing trends; meeting one-on-one with communities 
that are impacted by freight; and providing timely information via the web. Monitoring 
goods movement-related legislation and other regional freight initiatives.

$200,000

60115-304 Transit and Human Services Planning

Coordination, assistance and oversight to improve transit service and mobility. Work 
includes integration of all aspects of transit and mobility to ensure an adequate level 
of access is afforded to all populations while improving the range of options for 
meeting diverse mobility needs. Maintain the coordinated plans and assist with transit 
related special studies like ODOT transit needs assessment and COTA BRT study.

$140,000

* Project was previously authorized.  Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 1 of 7



60215-300 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Implementation

The TIP is one of the two required items to allow for the flow of federal and state 
transportation funds into the region. This activity includes the development, update 
and revisions of the TIP, monitoring of federally funded projects, coordination of 
federally funded infrastructure projects with projects funded from other sources, 
allocation of STP, CMAQ, and TAP funding, the TRAC process, environmental studies 
and engineering source document review, innovative financing, and financing 
education.

$255,000

60515-201 Manage and Collect Information

Significant amounts of data underlie all transportation analyses. This activity supports 
regional planning decisions by providing information and analysis tools. Data sets 
include information about land development, physical and operational characteristics 
of the transportation system, economic development, environmental limitations and 
demographics through coordination and collaboration with other data providers in the 
region.

$175,000

60515-202 Perform Trend Analyses

The purpose of this element is to analyze, synthesize and translate data into 
meaningful information to help decision makers in making transportation funding 
decisions. This includes supplying the travel demand model, as well as compiling 
information into easy-to-understand summaries.

$175,000

60515-203 Promote Data Sharing

This element pertains to advancing data sharing through use of technology and 
facilitation. Current data management systems allow for aggregating data sets from a 
variety of sources rather than promoting individual compilation of similar data sets 
from various entities.

$225,000

60515-204 Provide GIS, Mapping and Data Support for Projects and Programs

Many transportation programs and projects require data collection, analysis and 
evaluation. In addition, using GIS to create maps and use in data analysis uses a 
specific skill set. This element includes providing support for various transportation 
projects and programs that are functions of the MPO.

$185,000

60515-305 Transportation Systems Analysis Techniques and Applications

Building upon transportation data, this activity maintains, updates and refines the 
regional transportation models and continues to refine and implement the Congestion 
Management Process (CMP) procedures in the 3C planning process, including 
monitoring congestion and Environmental Justice (social equity) analysis as well as 
TIP and Transportation Plan air quality conformity, monitoring and reporting of A/Q 
issues, air quality policy and strategy development, SIP revisions, and CMAQ 
justifications. Participation in other regional congestion management and air quality 
initiatives.

$225,000

61014-001 Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning

The Long-Range Transportation Plan is the major requirement of the MPO, including 
coordinating all Transportation Plan-related activities. This includes any follow-up to 
the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan and continuing in preparation of the 
next plan to be completed by 2016. Part of this activity is to monitor, report on, and 
comply with federal planning requirements, as well as to coordinate with state and 
local agencies on transportation studies and plans. Furthermore, the regional 
thoroughfare plan will be updated as part of this element.

$539,831

* $140,000 remaining

61015-002 Transportation Public Involvement

Public involvement is a vital component of the transportation planning process. This 
activity maintains the public involvement process for transportation consistent with 
MAP-21 and federal regulations and local needs. Continued efforts to seek the 
involvement of low-income and minority populations, handicapped and elderly in the 
transportation planning process, Metropolitan Transportation Plan, TIP, Active 
Transportation Plan, Safety Plan and other transportation-related studies. Supports 
the activities of the Citizen Advisory Committee. Provides updates on transportation 
planning activities through the web and other public involvement activities.

$97,071

* Project was previously authorized.  Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 2 of 7



61015-301 Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning

The Long-Range Transportation Plan is the major requirement of the MPO, including 
coordinating all Transportation Plan-related activities. This includes any follow-up to 
the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan and continuing in preparation of 2016-
2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan to be completed by 2016. This activity is also 
to coordinate with state and local agencies on transportation studies and plans. 
Furthermore, the regional thoroughfare plan will be updated as part of this element.

$220,000

62525-100 Cross Jurisdictional Planning Coordination

Coordination of planning efforts among different jurisdictions is a critical element to 
ensuring regional consistency in the transportation network. This activity includes 
informational sharing meetings among MORPC and others, regional collaboration 
meetings, and educational transporttaion workshops and forums.

$120,000

69515-300 Program Administration

This work element is to facilitate the efficient administration of the transportation 
planning program. This work element provides for technical and policy direction of 
activities to fulfill ODOT, U.S. EPA, Ohio EPA, FHWA, FTA and jointly funded work as 
described in the Planning Work Program, where such activities are not directly 
attributable to specific work elements.

$105,000

* Project was previously authorized.  Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 3 of 7



II.  Special Projects

WORK ELEMENT

BUDGET

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

$2,173,940

$738,271

Total Budget

spent prior to SFY 2015 $1,435,669Balance for SFY 2015 or later is

66501-000

80% MORPC STP

Economic Impact of Trails

This element is to work with local government members to oversee a consultant to 
research the economic impact of trails in our region. This also includes an analysis of 
the costs and benefits of investments in trails in central Ohio. In addition, the study will 
provide some information on trail user profiles and trail-related expenditures.

$100,000

* $70,000 remaining

66502-000

100% ODOT Funded

Rural Transportation Planning Partnership

This work element is to partner with a rural planning organization as selected by 
ODOT and mentor them in conducting transportation planning in their region. This 
includes guiding them through the development of a transportation planning document 
similar to the Metropolitan Transportation Plan required of MPO's.

$250,000

* $230,000 remaining

66551-000

80% MORPC STP

Regional Development III

This work element is to develop references, tools, policy, and expertise necessary for 
local governments to make informed decisions about future land use development. 
These local land use decisions will impact the efficiency and efficacy of transportation 
investments, as well as long-term air quality attainment.

$330,000 ^

66552-000 Freight Trends Study

The purpose of the study is to help demonstrate the importance of freight-related 
facilities to the well being of Central Ohio. The study will focus on the impact the 
freight industry (globally and locally) has on the region’s infrastructure, with particular 
attention paid to the Rickenbacker area. The study will demonstrate the need for 
infrastructure improvements, and by doing so lay the groundwork for justifying future 
private and public funding opportunities that will ensure our continued success. 
Furthermore, this study will explore Central Ohio’s role in the global supply chain as 
well.

$200,000

* $1,000 remaining

66562-000

80% MORPC STP

Supplemental Planning SFY13

1)  Project Expedition SFY13 - Augment the efforts of the TIP project to ensure the 
timely completion of projects funded with MORPC-attributable funds.
2)  Traffic Monitoring - Augment traffic counts received from local governments by 
taking traffic counts at other key locations to maintain the regional model and for other 
purposes.   Enhance availability of data on the MORPC website.  Continue a speed 
data collection program. 
3)  Data Products and Services - This includes soliciting services and data products 
that supplement Work Element 60513-001.  It includes technical tools and services for 
promoting data sharing and availability.
4)  Assistance to Members - Provide planning data, travel demand forecasting, and 
transportation analysis assistance to members upon request for studies conducted by 
or for local governments. 
5.Cost/ Benefit analysis for converting small to mid-sized fleets to compressed natural 
gas (CNG) fuel. This project has the potential for implementation through collaboration 
with Clean Fuels Ohio, and encourages shared services by promoting use of existing 
CNG stations by multiple fleet operators.

$312,500

* $52,500 remaining

* Project was previously authorized.  Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 4 of 7



66564-000

80% MORPC STP

Supplemental Planning SFY15

1) Project Expedition SFY15 - Augment the efforts of the TIP project to ensure the 
timely completion of projects funded with MORPC-attributable funds.
2) Traffic Monitoring - Augment traffic counts received from local governments by 
taking traffic counts at other key locations to maintain the regional model and for other 
purposes. Enhance availability of data on the MORPC website. Continue a speed data 
collection program.
3) Data Products and Services - This includes soliciting services and data products
that supplement Work Element 60515-203. It includes technical tools and services for
promoting data sharing and availability.
4) Assistance to Members - Provide planning data, travel demand forecasting, and 
transportation analysis assistance to members upon request for studies conducted by
or for local governments.
5) ITS Architecture - Update the Regional ITS Architecture as a framework to ensure 
technical integration for the implementation of ITS projects in Central Ohio.

$312,500 ^

66565-000

80% MORPC STP

Regional Growth Impact Analysis (InSight 2050)

In order to better understand the transportation, environmental, public health, and 
fiscal impacts of current and future land development decisions, MORPC is interested 
in creating good analytical tools and highly transparent and reliable data that can 
objectively assess the impacts of such projected growth across a variety of key 
metrics (such as VMT, fuel consumed, infrastructure costs, safety costs, and 
emissions, among others). This activity includes hiring a consultant who can help 
MORPC and its partners develop and apply a model that can produce objective data 
to inform transportation, land use, and development decisions for Central Ohio.

$500,000

* $287,000 remaining

67405-000

100% FTA

Ongoing Human Services Transportation Coordination --

Continue ongoing human services transportation and public transit coordination 
planning for the Coordinated Plan and the selection of projects.

$71,621

* $55,350 remaining

67415-000

100% FTA

5310 Designated Recipient

This work element is to carry out the responsibility and authority for the administration 
of the FTA Section 5310 program for Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals 
with Disabilities for each federal fiscal year apportionment for the Columbus urbanized 
area. The program will follow FTA policy and program guidance in the selection of 
projects, and apply for FTA funding using the designated FTA electronic grant 
management system on behalf of eligible recipients.

$97,319

* Project was previously authorized.  Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 5 of 7



III.  Ridesharing and Air Quality Projects

WORK ELEMENT

BUDGET

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

$1,658,750

$560,000

Total Budget

spent prior to SFY 2015 $1,098,750Balance for SFY 2015 or later is

66714-001

100% MORPC CMAQ

Transportation Services (Ridesharing) SFY14

Promote travel demand reduction; includes carpool and vanpool matching, vanpool 
formations, transportation demand management strategies for employers, COTA and  
park-and-ride assistance in Central Ohio. Market programs and services in 12-county 
area to employers and general public. Administer Guaranteed Ride Home program 
and vanpool program. Assist in development of park-and-pool lots.

$450,000

* $35,000 remaining

66715-001

100% MORPC CMAQ

Transportation Services (Ridesharing) SFY15

Promote travel demand reduction; includes carpool and vanpool matching, vanpool 
formations, transportation demand management strategies for employers, COTA and 
park-and-ride assistance in central Ohio. Market programs and services in 11-county 
area to employers and general public. Administer Guaranteed Ride Home program 
and vanpool program. Assist in development of park-and-pool lots.

$715,000 ^

66731-000

100% MORPC CMAQ

Air Quality Awareness SFY14

A year-round public education program to increase public awareness about how 
mobile sources affect air quality and their effects on our environment, health, 
transportation and economy. This includes the daily air quality forecast service for 
ozone and particulate matter to track and report poor air quality to the public and 
media, working with employers to educate them on ways to provide commuter options 
for their employees, and advance use of alternative and/or clean fuel usage.

$368,750

* $223,750 remaining

66732-000

80% MORPC CMAQ

Air Quality Awareness SFY15

A year-round public education program to increase public awareness about how 
mobile sources affect air quality and their effects on our environment, health, 
transportation and economy. This includes the daily air quality forecast service for 
ozone and particulate matter to track and report poor air quality to the public and 
media, working with employers to educate them on ways to provide commuter options 
for their employees, partnering with the public health community to target individuals 
affected most by poor air quality, building a coalition of local governments, 
businesses, and individuals who are committed to taking designated clean air actions, 
and advancing the use of alternative and/or clean fuel usage.

$125,000

* Project was previously authorized.  Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 6 of 7



IV. Projects Undertaken By Other Entities

WORK ELEMENT

BUDGET

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

$0Total Budget

66505-000

No funding

Ongoing Local Planning

Other agencies also undertake transportation planning activities. This activity includes 
identifying local planning efforts and coordinating with them through other projects. No 
budget.

$0

67401-000

No funding

Ongoing COTA Activities

Identify COTA planning efforts and coordinate with them through other projects. No 
budget.

$0

67402-000

No funding

Ongoing DATA Activities

Identify DATABus planning efforts and coordinate with them through other projects. 
No budget.

$0

* Project was previously authorized.  Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 7 of 7



RESOLUTION T-6-14 

 

“AMENDING THE BYLAWS OF THE CITIZEN ADVISORY COMMITTEE” 
 

WHEREAS, the Citizen Advisory Committee, Article 1, Section 1, is provided for in the Public 

Involvement Process (PIP), such PIP as is required under 23 CFR §Sec 450.316, which sets out 

participation requirements for Metropolitan Transportation Planning and Programming; and  

 

WHEREAS, the current bylaws of the Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC) were last revised and 

approved by the Transportation Policy Committee on November 10, 2011; and 

 

WHEREAS, an amendment to the bylaws is required to reflect proposed changes; and 

 

WHEREAS, some of the changes proposed in the bylaws include: 

 Rename as the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) 

 Membership characteristics, selection and appointment requirements 

 Other changes to improve the efficiency of the committee; and 

 

WHEREAS, these changes require revision to Article I, Section 5B, Membership; Article II, Section 1, 

Officers and Duration; Section 2, Duties of Officers, and Section 3, Election; Article V, Section 2, CAC, 

among others; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Citizen Advisory Committee at its meeting on April 28, 2014, approved the proposed 

changes to the bylaws and recommended approval of the changes by the Transportation Policy 

Committee, effective July 1, 2014; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the attached revised bylaws dated April 28, 2014, are hereby approved in 

accordance with Article VII, Amendment, Section 1 of the Bylaws of the Citizen 

Advisory Committee, effective July 1, 2014. 

 

Section 2. That the Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal deliberations and 

actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution 

were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

     _________________________________________ 

     Eric S. Phillips, Chair  

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

      

     _________________________________________ 

     Date 

 

Prepared by: Bernice Cage 

Public Information & Diversity Officer 

 

Attachment: Community Advisory Committee Bylaws 

Revised April 28, 2014 

Effective: July 1, 2014 



 
 1 

 

 

 BYLAWS OF THE 

 COMMUNITY ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 OF THE 

  

 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

  

 ARTICLE I 
 

  

 

Section 1. NAME  

 

The name of this committee shall be the Community Advisory Committee of the Mid-

Ohio Regional Planning Commission. 

 

Section 2. ORIGIN  

 

The Community Advisory Committee is provided for in the Public Involvement Process 

(PIP; such PIP as is required under 23 CFR §Sec 450.316), which sets out 

participation requirements for Metropolitan Transportation Planning and 

Programming.   

 

Section 3. PURPOSES 

 

The purpose of the CAC is as follows: 

1. To ensure appropriate and timely advice to the Transportation Policy 

Committee, which is the Metropolitan Planning Organization as defined in the 

Public Involvement Process.  The CAC also advises the staff. 

2. To serve as the primary body representing public opinion on the goals, 

objectives, policies, system plans/programs or individual project 

plans/programs relating to improvement in transportation. 

3. To permit continuous interaction and two-way communication between 

participants and staff about the planning process from problem identification 

through all developmental phases to resolution. 

4. To ensure that all plans and programs give adequate consideration to 

possible social, economic, energy and environmental issues. 

5. To implement that part of the Public Involvement Process relating to public 

participation. 

 

Section 4. DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

The CAC shall: 

 

1. Hold regular meetings with the staff of the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) to 

become familiar with the planning process, priorities, funding requirements, state and 

federal guidelines and requirements, long- and short-range plans, and transportation issues. 

 

2. Provide funding and policy recommendations to the Transportation Policy Committee. 

 

3. Work with the planning staff during preparation of long- and short-range plans and familiarize 



 
 2 

itself with planning terminology and procedures. 

 

4. Review and recommend methodology for obtaining input to the planning process. 

 

5. Review the various phases of the Metropolitan Transportation Plan, Transportation 

Improvement Program (TIP), and special studies; including methodology, projections, 

assumptions, and recommended plans and programs prior to submission to the 

Transportation Policy Committee. 

 

6. Designate one or more representatives of the CAC to any MPO-related advisory committees 

convened to provide input into the planning process. 

 

7. Establish special subcommittees as may be required to provide supplemental advice 

necessary to facilitate review and consensus. 

 

8. Represent CAC on other committees in the communities, as appointed. 

 

9. Communicate information to the public within geographic districts and act as a liaison 

between public and staff. 

 

10. Participate at area meetings soliciting public comments, which are utilized in the decision-

making process at CAC meetings. 

 

11. Communicate public reaction and desires to staff, elected officials, and the Transportation 

Policy Committee of MORPC. 

 

12. Recruit qualified new or replacement members. 

 

Section 5. MEMBERSHIP 

 

A. In keeping with Purpose 2, the membership of the CAC shall be broad-based and 

shall include representation from the general citizenry, populations that are 

traditionally underserved with transportation, environmental interests, 

businesses, and others.  Members may represent multiple constituencies from 

among any of the above categories.   

 

i. General Citizens in the planning area 

No less than 50% of CAC membership should be drawn from geographic 

representation.  Geographic representation will be drawn from the 

Transportation Planning area with representatives of the following types of 

development areas (boundaries to be considered approximate): 

a. ”Central City” of the City of Columbus including the historical districts 

(intended to represent the portion of the city developed before 

automobiles became influential in development patterns)  

b. “Inner Ring” of the City of Columbus (intended to represent the portion of 

the city outside the “Central City” developed before freeways became 

influential in development patterns) 

c. “Outer Ring” of the City of Columbus (intended to represent the portion of 

the city outside the “Inner Ring” developed when freeways became 

influential in development patterns) 

d. “First suburbs” – first ring of suburbs surrounding a “Central City” that 

have little opportunity to expand geographically and are mostly 



 
 3 

developed; especially those suburbs developed before automobiles 

became influential in development patterns 

 

e. “Developing suburb” – a developing residential area outside the “Central 

City” that has an opportunity to expand geographically and has 

development patterns heavily influenced by the availability of the 

automobile 

f. “Exurbia/rural” – towns and low-density areas beyond the "Central City" 

and its contiguous suburbs 

 

The attached map shows the approximate boundaries of these six types of 

development areas.  Unincorporated areas will be grouped with the 

appropriate type of development area.  The rationale for dividing the 

geography of the Transportation Planning Area into these development 

categories is that they have similar types of infrastructure installed and face 

similar infrastructure and growth issues.  It is a goal to have two 

representatives for each type of development area, but areas with higher 

population will have more.   

 

ii. Transportation disadvantaged or underserved, for example: 

Low-income 

Minorities 

Senior Citizens/Veterans 

Children/Youth/Minor Students (Youth Commission) 

Mental/Physical Disabilities 

College Students (OSU, Columbus State) 

 

iii. Environmental, for example: 

Environmental 

Historic/Archaeological 

Pedestrians and Bicyclists 

Health Organizations 

 

iv. Business, for example 

Real Estate/Developers/Realtors 

Small Businesses 

General Business 

Media 

 

v. Transportation Providers, for example 

Yellow Cab, American Red Cross, National Church Residences Center for 

Senior Health 

 

vi. General Interest 

 

B. Membership Selection and Appointment  

a. Membership shall consist of a representative, designated or otherwise, from 

the populations listed.  To the extent possible members will be drawn from 

recognized organizations that themselves are representative of the 

populations or interests they are intended to represent.   

b. Membership of the CAC shall not exceed 24 representatives.   



 
 4 

c. Members shall be determined upon nomination by the Executive Director, 

MORPC Directors or the CAC Chair and appointed by the CAC Chair and the 

Executive Director.  

d. Members’ terms shall end the December of their second calendar year. 

Appointments may happen throughout the year and re-appointments shall be 

effective for a two (2) year term beginning in January.  
 

C. Attendance: Regular attendance is vital to the effective functioning of the CAC.  

Members who miss more than 3 consecutive meetings or more than 6 meetings 

per year will have their memberships re-evaluated and are subject to dismissal.  

Absences may be excused at the discretion of the Chair.   

 

 

 



 
 5 

 ARTICLE II 
 

Organization 

 

Section 1. OFFICERS & DURATION 

 

The officers shall consist of a Chair, Vice-chair and a Secretary.  Terms of office for 

Chair and Vice-chair shall start at the first meeting of odd numbered calendar years 

and  shall be for 2 years and limited to 2 consecutive terms of office.  The Secretary 

will be a MORPC staff person appointed by the Executive Director and shall serve 

until replaced. 

 

Section 2. DUTIES OF OFFICERS 

 

1. Chair - Presides at all meetings of the CAC and appoints subcommittees as 

needed.  The Chair acts as liaison between the CAC and the staff and 

Transportation Policy Committee of MORPC and as such is expected to attend 

all meetings of the Transportation Policy Committee.  The Chair supervises 

the conduct of the CAC's business and activities.  Acts as mediator when 

necessary.  Conveys the opinions of the CAC to MORPC's Transportation 

Policy Committee through membership in the Transportation Policy 

Committee. The Chair updates the CAC on the decisions of the Transportation 

Policy Committee. 

 

2. Vice-chair - Acts in place of the Chair when necessary and presides at 

meetings when the Chair temporarily vacates the Chair, or is absent from a 

meeting.  The Vice-chair is expected to attend the Transportation Policy 

Committee when the Chair is unable to do so. If the Chair is unable to 

continue the duties of the seat, then the Vice-chair assumes that position.  

Vice-chair serves as a member of the Complete Streets Appeals Committee 

pending appointment by the Chair of the Transportation Policy Committee.   
 

3. Secretary - Records the minutes and attendance, prepares required reports, 

notifies members of meetings and such other duties as required or directed 

by the CAC.  Secretary reviews minutes of meetings.  Secretary shall also 

have available at each meeting a copy of the bylaws and a book on 

parliamentary procedure. 

 

Section 3. ELECTION 

 

1. The Chair of the CAC, at the September meeting of each even numbered year shall appoint a 

nominating committee consisting of at least 3 members to develop a slate of candidates for 

next term’s Chair and Vice-chair. 

 

2. The nominating committee shall present a slate of candidates at the November meeting.  

Upon presentation of the slate of candidates, additional nominations may be made from the 

floor.  Following close of nominations, the Chair and Vice-chair shall be elected by the CAC. 

 

3. The secretary of the CAC shall be appointed from MORPC staff by the Executive Director.   

 

4. If a vacancy in the office of Chair occurs prior to the end of term, the Vice-chair will assume 

the duties and responsibilities of Chair for the remainder of the term. 



 
 6 

5. If a vacancy occurs in the office of Vice-chair prior to the end of term, a special election shall 

be called to fill the vacant position. 

 

 



 
 7 

ARTICLE III 
 

 Meetings 

 

Section 1. CAC MEETING TIMES AND ESTABLISHMENT OF THE AGENDA 

 

The CAC shall generally hold regular monthly meetings on the 2nd Monday prior to 

the Transportation Policy Committee.  The Transportation Policy Committee generally 

does not meet in August.  The calendar of CAC meetings including date, time and 

place, shall be set each year and shall consider the dates of Transportation Policy 

Committee meetings, holidays, and other events such as election days.  During the 

year monthly meeting dates, times, and places may be moved if conditions warrant.  

Monthly meetings may be canceled by the Chair if there is no business scheduled.  

The Chair may call special meetings as required. 

 

At least 2 weeks prior to the CAC meeting the Secretary shall poll the MPO staff and 

CAC officers for agenda items for that month.  From the responses the Secretary 

shall compile a draft agenda and circulate it to MPO staff and CAC officers.  The Chair 

shall have at least 1 day to review and comment on the agenda.   

 

Members desiring to add an item to the agenda of the monthly meeting should 

forward a list of such items and related handouts to the Chair and the Secretary at 

least 10 days prior to the meeting so they may be considered for inclusion on the 

agenda.  All other items and handouts submitted later by the members may be 

discussed at the CAC's discretion. 

 

Section 2. QUORUM 

 

The quorum shall consist of one-third (1/3) of current membership.  For the purposes 

of a quorum, current membership shall consist of participants who have accepted 

appointment to the CAC by MORPC and have not resigned that position nor been 

replaced by the Chair.  A majority vote of a quorum of the voting membership shall be 

required for committee action. 

 

Section 3. MINUTES AND AGENDAS 

 

The minutes shall be recorded by staff and reviewed and approved for content by the 

Secretary.  Copies will be mailed and/or electronically mailed to each member along 

with the new agenda prior to the next meeting. 

 

Notice of meetings shall be mailed and/or electronically mailed at least 1 week in 

advance of meeting date, whenever practical. 

 

Section 4. COMPENSATION 

 

No member of the CAC will be compensated for participating in the meetings. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 8 

 

 ARTICLE IV 

 

 Subcommittees 

 

Section 1. FORMATION 

 

Subcommittees shall be formed, when necessary, to provide supplemental advice on 

specific phases of the plan and program.  These committees shall be responsible to 

the CAC. 

 

Section 2. MEMBERSHIP 

 

Subcommittee members and Chair, who shall be a member of the CAC, shall be 

appointed by the Chair of the CAC and shall be composed of any person with 

recognized competence in the subcommittee subject and may include members of 

the CAC and individuals from outside the CAC. 

 

Section 3. DUTIES 

 

Subcommittee will perform specific tasks assigned to it and will report its advice and 

recommendations to the CAC. 

 

Section 4. MEETINGS 

 

Subcommittee shall meet as determined by the Chair of the subcommittee of the 

CAC. 

 

 

 ARTICLE V 

 

 Conflict Resolution 

 

Section 1. SUBCOMMITTEES 

 

If conflict should arise between the staff and a subcommittee regarding procedure, 

methodology, projections, assumptions, recommended plans, or any other aspect 

which cannot be resolved, a full report expressing the subcommittee's and staff's 

viewpoints will be presented to the CAC by the Chair of the subcommittee. 

 

Section 2. CAC 

 

If conflict should arise between the staff and CAC regarding procedure, methodology, 

projections, assumptions, recommended plans, or any other issue which cannot be 

resolved, a full report expressing the CAC's viewpoints will be presented to the 

Transportation Policy Committee by the Chair of the CAC.  Staff viewpoints should be 

presented by the Secretary of the CAC if there is a conflict. 

 

 

  



 
 9 

ARTICLE VI 
 

 Bylaws and Rules of Order 

 

 

The rules contained in the current edition of Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised shall govern the 

committee in all cases to which they are applicable and in which they are not inconsistent with these 

bylaws and any special rules of order the committee may adopt. 

 

 

 ARTICLE VII 
 

 Amendment 

 

Section 1. HOW AMENDED 

 

These articles may be amended by a majority vote of the CAC subject to approval of 

the Transportation Policy Committee. 

 

 

 ARTICLE VIII 
 

 Code of Ethics & Procedures 

 

Section 1. All members shall be aware of and governed by the Code of Ethics adopted by the 

Planning Commission in Resolution 45-94 (attached). 

 

 

Approved by the Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission on March 23, 

1995. 

 

Amended and approved by the Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission on 

December 16, 1999. 

 

Amended and approved by the Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission on 

February 12, 2004. 

 

Amended and approved by the Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission on 

November 10, 2011 and shall take effect on January 1, 2012. 

 

Amended and approved by the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning 

Commission on May 8, 2014 and shall take effect on July 1, 2014. 

 

 

Attachments: 

 Geographical Map 

 Code of Ethics 

 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, April 10, 2014 

2:35 p.m. 

 

Transportation Policy Committee Members 

Karen Angelou 

Stacey Boumis 

Mike Bradley 

Susan Brobst 

Marilyn Brown 

Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

Karl Craven 

Tracie Davies 

Michael Ebert 

Steve Gladman 

Matt Greeson 

Marsha Grigsby 

Marian Harris 

Dan Havener 

Tom Homan 

Erik Janas 

Anthony Jones 

Steve Kennedy 

Brook Kohn for Paula Brooks 

Greg Lestini 

Rory McGuiness 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Eric Phillips 

Rob Platte 

Bryan Rhoads 

Dean Ringle 

Dennis Schooley 

Thom Slack 

Ike Stage 

Dennis Stapleton 

Ted Staton 

Steve Stolte 

Scott Tourville 

Ellen Walker 

Ira Weiss 

Nancy White

 

Commission Members 

Terry Emery Steve Stolte 

 

Associate Members 

Jeff Cabot John O'Meara Nikki Scarpitti 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Mark Crosten 

Mary Ann Frantz 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Itzia Johnson 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Garth Weithman 

Kathy Werkmeister 

 

Guests 

Elliott Doza, COTA 

Cornell Robertson, FCEO 

Steve Tugend, Kegler Brown Hill & Ritter 

Bill Yaple 

  

  

Chair Eric Phillips called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:35 p.m. 

 

Monthly Progress Report – Nick Gill, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Interim Director 

 The Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) opened the Transportation Review Advisory Council 

(TRAC) application process last week. The TRAC process solicits and selects major projects (over $12 

million) that add capacity and reduce congestion on the transportation system The application period 

is open through May 30.  

 The U.S. Department of Transportation opened the window for Transportation Investment Generating 

Economic Recovery (TIGER) grant applications. The TIGER grant program is a $600 million federal 

discretionary program. MORPC is working with the City of Dublin and ODOT to submit an application for 

the I-270/US 33 interchange project.  



Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

April 10, 2014 

Page 2 

 
 

Functional Class Update – Maria Schaper, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding 

Maria Schaper gave an overview on the Federal Functional Classification Update. The classification update 

occurs every 10 years following the census updates to the urbanized area boundaries. The classification 

identifies the roles of roadways within the transportation network which determines eligibility for federal aid. 

The classification is in the review process. Comments from local jurisdictions are being received using a web 

map tool. Additional information is on MORPC's website. 

 

Draft 2015 Planning Work Program – Nick Gill, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Interim Director 

The Planning Work Program (PWP) is the annual scope of work provided to  ODOT for which MORPC will be 

using the federal transportation funds for planning. The three sections are: 

 Core planning – The regular program of activities using the formula planning funds 

 Special projects - one time activities 

 Air quality and RideSolutions activities 

 

The draft 2015 PWP will be sent to members following today's meeting. It will be brought forward at the May 

8, 2014 meeting for adoption. 

 

Transit System Review – Mike Bradley, COTA Capital Projects & Planning Director 

Mike Bradley gave a presentation on COTA's Transit System Study. The study is in the comment period. In 

May, COTA will develop a final draft proposed service network and downtown operations plan, which will go 

out for another round of public comment. 

 

Proposed Resolution T-3-14: "ADOPTION OF MORPC ATTRIBUTABLE FUNDING PROGRAM PRINCIPLES & 

PROCEDURES" - Nick Gill 

Ira Weiss made a motion to approve Resolution T-3-14, second by Marilyn Brown; motion passed.   

 

Consent Agenda 

Marian Harris made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Derrick Clay; motion passed.   

 

The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 2:55 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/transportation/highway/federal-aid-highway-classification-system/index


 

 

 

 

 

 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Officers and Board Members 

Transportation Policy Committee 

Transportation Advisory Committee 

Citizen Advisory Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Nick Gill, Interim Transportation Systems and Funding Director 

 

DATE:  

 

May 2, 2014 

SUBJECT: 

 

Proposed Resolution T-5-14: "Amending the State Fiscal Year 

(SFY) 2014-2017 Transportation Improvement Program" 

 
Proposed Resolution T-5-14 will modify two projects on the SFY 2014-2017 TIP with commitments 

totaling over $1.5 million.  These changes are necessary to enable these projects to advance using 

the identified sources of funding and to maintain fiscal constraint.  ODOT will include these changes 

in a request to FTA to amend the STIP in May.  

 

Attachment 1 to the resolution provides a description of the funding and scope of each project, 

including a description of the bicycle and pedestrian components.  There are no MORPC-attributable 

funds in this amendment. 

 

Below is an explanation of the proposed changes to the TIP.  

 

Delaware County Transit Board operated by Delaware Area Transit Agency has updated costs and 

modified two project descriptions.  Security, enhancement, computer purchases, and operating costs 

for paratransit and job access reverse commute have been identified.   

 

 

 

NTG:MAMF:bsn 

 

Attachment: Proposed Resolution T-5-15 

 



RESOLUTION T-5-14 

 

“AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL YEAR (SFY) 2014-2017 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT 

PROGRAM” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) adopted the SFY 2014-2017 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) by Resolution T-5-

13; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Delaware County Transit Board requested the modification of two projects on the 

2014-2017 TIP as shown in Attachment 1; and 

 

WHEREAS, the projects are consistent with the transportation policies, plans, and programs, 

including the most recent Transportation Plan adopted by the Transportation Policy Committee; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Citizen Advisory Committee at its meeting on April 28, 2014, and the Transportation 

Advisory Committee at its meeting on April 30, 2014, recommended approval of this resolution to 

the Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the MORPC SFY 2014-2017 TIP be amended to include the project information 

as shown in Attachment 1. 

 

Section 2. That it affirms that the fiscal balance of the SFY 2014-2017 TIP is maintained. 

 

Section 3. That the determination of conformity between the TIP and the State Implementation 

Plan (SIP) is hereby reaffirmed, as the projects are exempt from conformity 

requirements or have been included in the most recent conformity approval. 

 

Section 4. That this resolution will be transmitted to ODOT and all local agencies listed as 

sponsoring agencies in Attachment 1 for appropriate action. 

 

Section 5. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal 

deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption 

of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee.  

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_________________________________________  

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Staff 

 

Attachment: 

1. Amended Project Information for the SFY 2014-2017 TIP 

 

 



Resolution T-5-14

Attachment 1 - Amended Project Information

Agency: DATA PID: 94986 TIP ID: 2771 MTP ID:  1017

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-2015 Operating- Length (mi.):

OTHER $689,424SEC 53072015

State FY Phase Source Amount

DATA Operating, Transit Activity, Operating, Paratransit Operations and JARC Eligible Fixed Routes

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

OTHER $130,000State Transit2015

OTHER $693,000Local-Transit2015

Total: $1,512,424

Agency: DATA PID: 95012 TIP ID: 2774 MTP ID:  773

Project Type(s): Transit Activity Air Quality: E

Co-Route-Sec: DEL-2015 Support Equipme- Length (mi.):

PURCH $66,160SEC 53072015

State FY Phase Source Amount

DATA 2015 Support Equipment, Transit Activity, Safety and Security - 2 way radios, backup repeater, and facility 

keyless entry, Bus Shelter, Stationary Bike Rack, Trash Can, Computer File Server, Software Mapping, Copier, and 

Shop Equipment

Not applicable. 

Not applicable. 

Description:

Bike Components:

Ped Components:

PURCH $16,540Local-Transit2015

Total: $82,700

Summary of Funding Sources

Source Description Total Amount

Local-Transit Local Public Transit Authority $709,540

SEC 5307 Transit Formula Block Grants $755,584

State Transit State Transit Funds $130,000

Grand Total $1,595,124

Tuesday, April 22, 2014 Page 1 of 1

Funds in FYs prior to 2014 are not included in this report nor in the 2014-2017 TIP.



 RESOLUTION T-7-14 

 

“ACCEPTANCE OF THE MORPC FISCAL YEAR 2015 PLANNING WORK PROGRAM” 

 

WHEREAS, surface transportation systems serve economic activities and provide the necessary and 

highly valued opportunity for people to travel freely wherever and whenever they want; and 

 

WHEREAS, inevitably travel in Central Ohio involves frequent crossings of municipal, township and county 

boundaries on facilities that are under the control of various local jurisdictions, special-purpose agencies, 

and the State of Ohio; and  

 

WHEREAS, usually transportation systems that function best and are most cost-effective include regular 

cooperative and coordinated planning and decision-making across geographic and administrative 

boundaries; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is the role of the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) to help encourage, facilitate and 

provide a forum for this cooperation so as to help spend regional transportation funds most effectively; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Work Program (PWP) is the document that outlines the work of the MPO, the use 

of regional transportation planning funds, and the regional planning activities that will be undertaken in 

the coming year; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration, the Ohio Department of Transportation, and the Central 

Ohio Transit Authority have reviewed the MORPC Fiscal Year 2015 PWP (summary attached); and 

 

WHEREAS, approval of this work program by the Transportation Policy Committee is necessary for MORPC 

to receive federal and state grants to accomplish the scope of work within it; and 

 

WHEREAS, basic requirements for the PWP are included in the U.S. Code of Federal Regulations, Title 23, 

Section 450.308; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Citizen Advisory Committee at its meeting on April 28, 2014 and the Transportation 

Advisory Committee at its meeting on April 30, 2014 recommended acceptance of this work program by 

the Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTTION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING 

COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it hereby accepts the attached MORPC Planning Work Program for Fiscal Year 2015 

as a document to receive federal and state planning funds. 

 

Section 2. That this resolution be forwarded to ODOT as evidence of acceptance of this program by 

the Policy Committee. 

 

Section 3. That this committee finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions of this 

committee concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken in open 

meetings of this committee. 

 

 

______________________________  

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

______________________________ 

Date 

 

Prepared by: Transportation Department 

 

Attachment: Summary of FY 2015 PWP (Handout) 



* Project was previously authorized. Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014 

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015 
 

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 1 of 7 

 

Attachment to Resolution T-7-14 and 

Attachment B to Resolution 15-14 

 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 

FISCAL YEAR 2015 PLANNING WORK PROGRAM 
 

Notes on Listing 

Total budget of all work elements (including funds spent prior to SFY 2015) $7,208,231 

$5,391,490 is estimated to remain to be expended in SFY 2015 or subsequent years. 
 

I. Formula Funded Planning Program Projects 
 

Total Budget 
 

$3,375,541 
 

$518,470 spent prior to SFY 2015 
 

Balance for SFY 2015 or later is $2,857,071 

WORK ELEMENT 

BUDGET 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

60114-003 Safety Planning 

$178,639 

 
* $60,000 remaining 

Safety continues to be a significant focus for FHWA, ODOT and the entire region. 
This activity works to gather safety-related data, manage crash data clean-up, report 
on safety meetings, track development of projects to address safety issues, 
coordinate with the safety management system, and prepare the safety aspects of the 
Transportation Plan. In addition, this work element includes collaboration with MORPC 
members to identify and address (potential) high-crash locations and behaviors. 

 

60115-101 Active Transportation Planning 

$400,000 Active transportation planning is an important element to transportation planning in 
general. This activity works to create a regional active transportation plan, gather 
pedestrian and bicycle-related data, review transportation plans and projects to ensure 
that all users are accommodated, work on specific projects, such as the Economic 
Impact of Trails study, and provide information and education to local government 
members to assist them in their local planning efforts. 

 

60115-103 Safety Planning 

$135,000 Safety continues to be a significant focus for FHWA, ODOT and the entire region. 
This activity works to gather crash data, conduct crash data analysis to provide 
regional high-crash location lists, report on safety meetings, encourage local 
governments to apply for funding to implement safety countermeasures, conduct 
preand post-crash data analysis for safety projects to evaluate the benefits of each 
countermeasure, implement the regional systematic safety improvement pilot, and 
develop a regional safety plan. 

 

60115-302 Management & Operations Planning 

$200,000 Managing and maintaining the extensive existing transportation system is an essential 
activity. This activity includes education on the benefits of a holistically managed 
transportation system. Helping members collaborate on M&O, advancing ITS and 
access management, estimating costs to maintain the condition of the transportation 
system including pavement management and deficient bridges, etc. Incorporating 
security and emergency response into the planning process. Monitoring freight rail 
activities and analyzing for developing trends; meeting one-on-one with communities 
that are impacted by freight; and providing timely information via the web. Monitoring 
goods movement-related legislation and other regional freight initiatives. 

 

60115-304 Transit and Human Services Planning 

$140,000 Coordination, assistance and oversight to improve transit service and mobility. Work 
includes integration of all aspects of transit and mobility to ensure an adequate level of 
access is afforded to all populations while improving the range of options for meeting 
diverse mobility needs. Maintain the coordinated plans and assist with transit related 
special studies like ODOT transit needs assessment and COTA BRT study. 



* Project was previously authorized. Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014 

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015 
 

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 2 of 7 

 

60215-300 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and Implementation 

$255,000 The TIP is one of the two required items to allow for the flow of federal and state 
transportation funds into the region. This activity includes the development, update 
and revisions of the TIP, monitoring of federally funded projects, coordination of 
federally funded infrastructure projects with projects funded from other sources, 
allocation of STP, CMAQ, and TAP funding, the TRAC process, environmental studies 
and engineering source document review, innovative financing, and financing 
education. 

 

60515-201 Manage and Collect Information 

$175,000 Significant amounts of data underlie all transportation analyses. This activity supports 
regional planning decisions by providing information and analysis tools. Data sets 
include information about land development, physical and operational characteristics 
of the transportation system, economic development, environmental limitations and 
demographics through coordination and collaboration with other data providers in the 
region. 

 

60515-202 Perform Trend Analyses 

$175,000 The purpose of this element is to analyze, synthesize and translate data into 
meaningful information to help decision makers in making transportation funding 
decisions. This includes supplying the travel demand model, as well as compiling 
information into easy-to-understand summaries. 

 

60515-203 Promote Data Sharing 

$225,000 This element pertains to advancing data sharing through use of technology and 
facilitation. Current data management systems allow for aggregating data sets from a 
variety of sources rather than promoting individual compilation of similar data sets 
from various entities. 

 

60515-204 Provide GIS, Mapping and Data Support for Projects and Programs 

$185,000 Many transportation programs and projects require data collection, analysis and 
evaluation. In addition, using GIS to create maps and use in data analysis uses a 
specific skill set. This element includes providing support for various transportation 
projects and programs that are functions of the MPO. 

 

60515-305 Transportation Systems Analysis Techniques and Applications 

$225,000 Building upon transportation data, this activity maintains, updates and refines the 
regional transportation models and continues to refine and implement the Congestion 
Management Process (CMP) procedures in the 3C planning process, including 
monitoring congestion and Environmental Justice (social equity) analysis as well as 
TIP and Transportation Plan air quality conformity, monitoring and reporting of A/Q 
issues, air quality policy and strategy development, SIP revisions, and CMAQ 
justifications. Participation in other regional congestion management and air quality 
initiatives. 

 

61014-001 Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning 

$539,831 

 
* $140,000 remaining 

The Long-Range Transportation Plan is the major requirement of the MPO, including 
coordinating all Transportation Plan-related activities. This includes any follow-up to 
the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan and continuing in preparation of the 
next plan to be completed by 2016. Part of this activity is to monitor, report on, and 
comply with federal planning requirements, as well as to coordinate with state and 
local agencies on transportation studies and plans. Furthermore, the regional 
thoroughfare plan will be updated as part of this element. 

 

61015-002 Transportation Public Involvement 

$97,071 Public involvement is a vital component of the transportation planning process. This 
activity maintains the public involvement process for transportation consistent with 
MAP-21 and federal regulations and local needs. Continued efforts to seek the 
involvement of low-income and minority populations, handicapped and elderly in the 
transportation planning process, Metropolitan Transportation Plan, TIP, Active 
Transportation Plan, Safety Plan and other transportation-related studies. Supports 
the activities of the Citizen Advisory Committee. Provides updates on transportation 
planning activities through the web and other public involvement activities. 



* Project was previously authorized. Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014 

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015 
 

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 3 of 7 

 

61015-301 Long-Range Multimodal Transportation Planning 

$220,000 The Long-Range Transportation Plan is the major requirement of the MPO, including 
coordinating all Transportation Plan-related activities. This includes any follow-up to 
the 2012-2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan and continuing in preparation of 2016- 
2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan to be completed by 2016. This activity is also 
to coordinate with state and local agencies on transportation studies and plans. 
Furthermore, the regional thoroughfare plan will be updated as part of this element. 

 

62525-100 Cross Jurisdictional Planning Coordination 

$120,000 Coordination of planning efforts among different jurisdictions is a critical element to 
ensuring regional consistency in the transportation network. This activity includes 
informational sharing meetings among MORPC and others, regional collaboration 
meetings, and educational transporttaion workshops and forums. 

 

69515-300 Program Administration 

$105,000 This work element is to facilitate the efficient administration of the transportation 
planning program. This work element provides for technical and policy direction of 
activities to fulfill ODOT, U.S. EPA, Ohio EPA, FHWA, FTA and jointly funded work as 
described in the Planning Work Program, where such activities are not directly 
attributable to specific work elements. 



* Project was previously authorized. Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014 

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015 
 

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 4 of 7 

 

II. Special Projects 
 

Total Budget 
 

$2,173,940 
 

$738,271 spent prior to SFY 2015 
 

Balance for SFY 2015 or later is $1,435,669 

WORK ELEMENT 

BUDGET 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
66501-000 

$100,000 

80% MORPC STP 

* $70,000 remaining 

66502-000 

$250,000 

100% ODOT Funded 

* $230,000 remaining 

66551-000 

$330,000 ^ 

80% MORPC STP 

 
Economic Impact of Trails 

This element is to work with local government members to oversee a consultant to 
research the economic impact of trails in our region. This also includes an analysis of 
the costs and benefits of investments in trails in central Ohio. In addition, the study will 
provide some information on trail user profiles and trail-related expenditures. 
 

Rural Transportation Planning Partnership 

This work element is to partner with a rural planning organization as selected by ODOT 
and mentor them in conducting transportation planning in their region. This includes 
guiding them through the development of a transportation planning document similar to 
the Metropolitan Transportation Plan required of MPO's. 
 

Regional Development III 

This work element is to develop references, tools, policy, and expertise necessary for 
local governments to make informed decisions about future land use development. 
These local land use decisions will impact the efficiency and efficacy of transportation 
investments, as well as long-term air quality attainment. 

 

66552-000 Freight Trends Study 

$200,000 

 
* $1,000 remaining 

 
 
 
 

66562-000 

$312,500 

80% MORPC STP 

* $52,500 remaining 

The purpose of the study is to help demonstrate the importance of freight-related 
facilities to the well being of Central Ohio. The study will focus on the impact the 
freight industry (globally and locally) has on the region’s infrastructure, with particular 
attention paid to the Rickenbacker area. The study will demonstrate the need for 
infrastructure improvements, and by doing so lay the groundwork for justifying future 
private and public funding opportunities that will ensure our continued success. 
Furthermore, this study will explore Central Ohio’s role in the global supply chain as 
well. 
 

Supplemental Planning SFY13 

1) Project Expedition SFY13 - Augment the efforts of the TIP project to ensure the 
timely completion of projects funded with MORPC-attributable funds. 
2) Traffic Monitoring - Augment traffic counts received from local governments by 
taking traffic counts at other key locations to maintain the regional model and for other 
purposes.  Enhance availability of data on the MORPC website. Continue a speed 
data collection program. 
3) Data Products and Services - This includes soliciting services and data products 
that supplement Work Element 60513-001. It includes technical tools and services for 
promoting data sharing and availability. 
4) Assistance to Members - Provide planning data, travel demand forecasting, and 
transportation analysis assistance to members upon request for studies conducted by 
or for local governments. 
5.Cost/ Benefit analysis for converting small to mid-sized fleets to compressed natural 
gas (CNG) fuel. This project has the potential for implementation through collaboration 
with Clean Fuels Ohio, and encourages shared services by promoting use of existing 
CNG stations by multiple fleet operators. 



* Project was previously authorized. Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014 

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015 
 

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 5 of 7 

 

66564-000 

$312,500 ^ 

80% MORPC STP 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
66565-000 

$500,000 

80% MORPC STP 

* $287,000 remaining 

 
 
 
 

67405-000 

$71,621 

100% FTA 

* $55,350 remaining 

67415-000 

$97,319 

100% FTA 

Supplemental Planning SFY15 

1) Project Expedition SFY15 - Augment the efforts of the TIP project to ensure the 
timely completion of projects funded with MORPC-attributable funds. 
2) Traffic Monitoring - Augment traffic counts received from local governments by taking 
traffic counts at other key locations to maintain the regional model and for other 
purposes. Enhance availability of data on the MORPC website. Continue a speed data 
collection program. 
3) Data Products and Services - This includes soliciting services and data products 
that supplement Work Element 60515-203. It includes technical tools and services for 
promoting data sharing and availability. 
4) Assistance to Members - Provide planning data, travel demand forecasting, and 
transportation analysis assistance to members upon request for studies conducted by 
or for local governments. 
5) ITS Architecture - Update the Regional ITS Architecture as a framework to ensure 
technical integration for the implementation of ITS projects in Central Ohio. 
 

Regional Growth Impact Analysis (InSight 2050) 

In order to better understand the transportation, environmental, public health, and fiscal 
impacts of current and future land development decisions, MORPC is interested in 
creating good analytical tools and highly transparent and reliable data that can 
objectively assess the impacts of such projected growth across a variety of key metrics 
(such as VMT, fuel consumed, infrastructure costs, safety costs, and emissions, 
among others). This activity includes hiring a consultant who can help MORPC and its 
partners develop and apply a model that can produce objective data to inform 
transportation, land use, and development decisions for Central Ohio. 
 

Ongoing Human Services Transportation Coordination -- 

Continue ongoing human services transportation and public transit coordination 
planning for the Coordinated Plan and the selection of projects. 

 
 
5310 Designated Recipient 

This work element is to carry out the responsibility and authority for the administration 
of the FTA Section 5310 program for Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals 
with Disabilities for each federal fiscal year apportionment for the Columbus urbanized 
area. The program will follow FTA policy and program guidance in the selection of 
projects, and apply for FTA funding using the designated FTA electronic grant 
management system on behalf of eligible recipients. 



* Project was previously authorized. Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014 

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015 
 

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 6 of 7 

 

III. Ridesharing and Air Quality Projects 
 

Total Budget 
 

$1,658,750 
 

$560,000 spent prior to SFY 2015 
 

Balance for SFY 2015 or later is $1,098,750 

WORK ELEMENT 

BUDGET 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
66714-001 

$450,000 

100% MORPC CMAQ 

* $35,000 remaining 

 
66715-001 

$715,000 ^ 

100% MORPC CMAQ 

 
 
 

66731-000 

$368,750 

100% MORPC CMAQ 

* $223,750 remaining 

 

 
66732-000 

$125,000 

80% MORPC CMAQ 

 
Transportation Services (Ridesharing) SFY14 

Promote travel demand reduction; includes carpool and vanpool matching, vanpool 
formations, transportation demand management strategies for employers, COTA and 
park-and-ride assistance in Central Ohio. Market programs and services in 12-county 
area to employers and general public. Administer Guaranteed Ride Home program 
and vanpool program. Assist in development of park-and-pool lots. 
 

Transportation Services (Ridesharing) SFY15 

Promote travel demand reduction; includes carpool and vanpool matching, vanpool 
formations, transportation demand management strategies for employers, COTA and 
park-and-ride assistance in central Ohio. Market programs and services in 11-county 
area to employers and general public. Administer Guaranteed Ride Home program 
and vanpool program. Assist in development of park-and-pool lots. 
 

Air Quality Awareness SFY14 

A year-round public education program to increase public awareness about how mobile 
sources affect air quality and their effects on our environment, health, transportation 
and economy. This includes the daily air quality forecast service for ozone and 
particulate matter to track and report poor air quality to the public and media, working 
with employers to educate them on ways to provide commuter options for their 
employees, and advance use of alternative and/or clean fuel usage. 
 

Air Quality Awareness SFY15 

A year-round public education program to increase public awareness about how 
mobile sources affect air quality and their effects on our environment, health, 
transportation and economy. This includes the daily air quality forecast service for 
ozone and particulate matter to track and report poor air quality to the public and 
media, working with employers to educate them on ways to provide commuter options 
for their employees, partnering with the public health community to target individuals 
affected most by poor air quality, building a coalition of local governments, 
businesses, and individuals who are committed to taking designated clean air actions, 
and advancing the use of alternative and/or clean fuel usage. 



* Project was previously authorized. Budget estimated to remain at the end of SFY 2014 

^ Project is expected to continue beyond SFY 2015 
 

Friday, April 25, 2014 Page 7 of 7 

 

IV. Projects Undertaken By Other Entities 
 

Total Budget  $0 
 

WORK ELEMENT 

BUDGET 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 
66505-000 

$0 

No funding 

 
Ongoing Local Planning 

Other agencies also undertake transportation planning activities. This activity includes 
identifying local planning efforts and coordinating with them through other projects. No 
budget. 

 
67401-000 

$0 

No funding 

Ongoing COTA Activities 

Identify COTA planning efforts and coordinate with them through other projects. No 
budget. 

 

 
67402-000 

$0 

No funding 

Ongoing DATA Activities 

Identify DATABus planning efforts and coordinate with them through other projects. 
No budget. 



RESOLUTION T-8-14 

 

“CERTIFICATION OF THE MORPC METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION PLANNING PROCESS” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission is designated as the 

metropolitan planning organization (MPO) for the Columbus Urbanized Area; and 

 

WHEREAS, 23 CFR 450.334 requires that the state and MPO certify, at least every four years, that the transportation 

planning process is being carried out in accordance with all applicable requirements, including: 

 

(1) 23 U.S.C. 134 and 49 U.S.C. 5303 (Metropolitan Transportation Planning requirements); 

(2) Sections 174 and 176(c) and (d) of the Clean Air Act, as Amended (42 U.S.C. 7504, 7506 (c) and (d) and 40 

CFR part 93; 

(3) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d-1) and 49 CFR part 21; 

(4) 49 U.S.C. 5332, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex or age in 

employment or business opportunity; 

(5) Section 1101(b) of the)SAFETEA-LU (Pub. L. 109-59 and 49 CFR part 26 regarding the involvement of 

disadvantaged business enterprises in USDOT-funded projects; 

(6) 23 CFR part 230, regarding the implementation of the equal employment opportunity program on federal and 

federal-aid highway construction contracts; 

(7) The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) and 49 CFR parts 27, 

37 and 38; 

(8) The Older Americans Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101) prohibiting discrimination on the basis of age in 

programs or activities receiving federal financial assistance; 

(9) Section 324 of Title 23 U.S.C. regarding the prohibition of discrimination based on gender; and 

(10) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) and 49 CFR part 27 regarding discrimination 

against individuals with disabilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, this “self-certification” is separate from the MPO certification done by the Federal Highway Administration 

and Federal Transit Administration, which was last conducted at MORPC in 2010; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a prerequisite to the receipt of federal financial assistance (per 49 CFR Subtitle A, Section 21.7), 

MORPC is required to provide the Title VI Assurances, included in Attachment A; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Citizen Advisory Committee at its meeting on April 28, 2014 and the Transportation Advisory Committee 

at its meeting on April 30, 2014 recommended approval of this resolution by the Policy Committee; now therefore 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING 

COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That it certifies that the urban transportation planning process is carried out in conformance with all 

the applicable federal requirements to the degree that is appropriate for the size and complexity of the 

area. 

 

Section 2. That it provides the Title VI Assurances in Attachment A, Parts 1 and 2. 

 

Section 3. That this committee finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions of this committee 

concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this 

committee. 

 

_____________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair    

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

_____________________________________ 

      Date 

 

Prepared by: Nick Gill 

 

Attachments: 

A. Part 1 -  Standard DOT Title VI Assurances 

 Part 2 – Contractor Contractual Requirements 



ATTACHMENT A – PART 1 
STANDARD DOT TITLE VI ASSURANCES 

 

 

The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission (MORPC) hereby agrees that as a condition to receiving Federal 

financial assistance from the Department of Transportation (DOT), it will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 

of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d et seq.) and all requirements imposed by 49 CFR Part 21 -  Nondiscrimination in 

Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation --  Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 

of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the “Regulations”) to the end that no person in the United States shall, on the 

ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 

otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which MORPC receives Federal financial 

assistance and will immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this agreement.  Without limiting the 

above general assurance, MORPC agrees that: 

 

1. Each “program” and “facility” (as defined in Sections 21.23(e) and 21.23 (b)) will be conducted or operated 

in compliance with all requirements of the Regulations. 

 

2. It will insert the clauses of Part 2 of this assurance in every contract subject to the Act and the Regulations. 

 

3. This assurance obligates MORPC for the period during which Federal financial assistance is extended to the 

program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to provide, or is in the form of personal property or 

real property or interest therein or structures or improvements thereon, in which case the assurance 

obligates MORPC or any transferee for the longer of the following periods: 

 

(a) the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which Federal financial assistance is 

extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, or 

 

(b) the period during which MORPC retains ownership or possession of the property. 

 

4. It will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found by the Secretary of 

Transportation or the official to whom (s)he delegates specific authority to give reasonable guarantee that it, 

other sponsors, subgrantees, contractors, subcontractors, transferees, successors in interest, and other 

participants or Federal financial assistance under such program will comply with all requirements imposed or 

pursuant to the Act, the Regulations, and this assurance. 

 

5. It agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with regard to any matter arising 

under the Act, the Regulations, and this assurance. 

 

THIS ASSURANCE is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining Federal financial assistance for 

this Project and is binding on MORPC, its contractor, subcontractors, transferees, successors in interest and 

other participants in the Project.  The person whose signature appears on this resolution is authorized to sign this 

assurance on behalf of MORPC. 

 

 

  



ATTACHMENT A – PART 2 

CONTRACTOR CONTRACTUAL REQUIREMENTS 

 

 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest 

(hereinafter referred to as the "contractor") agrees as follows: 

 

1. Compliance with Regulations.  The contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to 

nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation (hereinafter "DOT"), Title 

49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time (hereinafter referred to as 

the “Regulations”), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 

 

2. Nondiscrimination.  The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not 

discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection and retention of subcontractors, 

including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.  The contractor shall not participate either directly 

or indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices 

when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations. 

 

3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, including Procurements of Materials and Equipment.  In all solicitations 

either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the contractor for work to be performed under a 

subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each potential subcontractor or 

supplier shall be notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under this contract and the Regulations 

relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin. 

 

4. Information and Reports.  The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the 

Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other 

sources of information, and its facilities as may be determined by the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC), the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT), or DOT to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with 

such Regulations, orders, and instructions.  Where any information required of a contractor is in the exclusive 

possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the contractor shall so certify to MORPC, 

ODOT or DOT, as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

 

5. Sanctions for Noncompliance.  In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination 

provisions of this contract, MORPC shall impose such contract sanctions as it, ODOT or the DOT may determine to 

be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

 

a. Withholding of payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies, and/or 

 

b. Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part. 

 

6. Incorporation of Provisions.  The contractor and subcontractor(s) shall include the provisions of 

paragraphs 1 through 5 in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, 

unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued Pursuant thereto.  The contractor and subcontractor(s) 

shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as MORPC, ODOT or DOT may direct as a 

means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, however, that in the event 

a contractor or subcontractor(s) becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or 

supplier as a result of such direction, the contractor or subcontractor(s) may request MORPC or ODOT to enter 

into such litigation to protect the interests of MORPC or ODOT and, in addition, the contractor may request the 

United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 


